
 

  
 
 
 
 

 
Person
Clerk’s 
meeting
F.S.S. 
any ma
they m
testimo
verbatim
 

1. CAL
 INVO
 FLAG
 PLEA

 
2. CON
 (A con

on the
may b

 
a. 
 
b.  
 

3. PRE
  
4. PUB
 Quas

a. 
GRA
SEC
WITH
PRO
AN 
Deve
R-1 
recre
Reco

Mayo

s with disabiliti
Department, A

g. 
286.0105A

atter considered
may need to e
ony and eviden
m record. 

LL TO ORDE
OCATION 
G SALUTE 
ASE TURN 

NSENT AGE
nsent agenda ma
e request of any 
be either taken up

Minutes f

Bills for A

ESENTATIO

BLIC HEARI
si-judicial Items

ORDINA
ANTING A R
CTION 8.6 O
THIN THE CI
OVIDING FO

EFFECTIV
elopment to
(Low Densi

eation cente
ommends A

CITY C
Mayo

or Pro‐Tem/

ies needing as
ADA Coordin

A ‐ If a person 
d at this meeti
nsure that a v
ce upon which

ER: 

OFF ALL CE

ENDA/INFOR
ay be presented 
one Commissio

p immediately aft

for Approval

Approval  

NS AND/OR

NGS – Time
s 
ANCE NO. 
REQUEST F
OF THE LAN
ITY OF WIL

OR SEVERA
VE DATE. 

 allow for a 
ity Resident
er and othe

Approval). 

COMMISSIO
r/Commissi
/Commission

Robby S
Don C
Julian

Bill Ed Cann

A

REGU
AUGUST 2

City Hall Co
100 N

sistance to par
ator, at 352‐33

decides to app
ng, they will n
verbatim recor
h the appeal is

ELL PHONE

RMATIONA
by the Mayor at

oner. Items not re
ter the consent a

l: August 11

R PROCLAM

ed -  

O2014-33.
FOR A RESI
ND DEVELO
LDWOOD, F
ABILITY; PR

This Ordina
residential 

tial) for 400 
er amenity 

 

ON ‐ CITY OF
ioner – Ed W
ner – Pamala
Strickland – S
C. Clark –Se

Green – Se
non – City M

 

AGENDA 

ULAR MEET
25, 2014 - 7:
ommission C
N Main Stree

rticipate in any
30‐1330, Ext. 

peal any decis
need a record o
rd of the proce
to be based. T

ES AND PAG

L ITEMS 
the beginning o

emoved may be
genda or placed

, 2014 Regu

MATIONS  

 AN ORDI
IDENTIAL P
OPMENT RE

FLORIDA; O
OVIDING FO
ance estab
planned dev
Single Fam

improvemen

F WILDWOO
Wolf – Seat 
a Harrison‐B
Seat 3 
at 4 

eat 5 
Manager 

TING 
:00 PM 

Chamber 
et 

y of these proce
102, forty‐eigh

sion made by t
of the proceed
eedings is ma
The City of Wild

GERS 

f a meeting. Item
adopted by gen
later on the agen

ular Meeting

INANCE OF
PLANNED D
EGULATION
WNED BY C
OR CODIFIC
blishes the 
velopment (

mily Detache
nts and infr

OD 
t 1 
Bivins – Sea

eedings should
ht (48) hours in

he Commissio
ings, and that 

ade, which rec
dwood DOES 

ms may be remo
neral consent wit
nda at the discre

.  

F THE CIT
DEVELOPME
NS. FOR CE
COAST DEV
CATION; AN

Grand Oa
RPD) overla

ed (SFD) re
rastructure .

at 2 

d contact the C
n advance of t

on with respect
for such purpo

cord includes t
NOT provide t

ved from the con
thout debate. Re
tion of the Comm

TY OF WIL
ENT PURSU
ERTAIN PR
VELOPMEN
ND PROVID
aks Manor 
ay on prope

esidential un
. (Attachme

PAGE
AGENDA

City 
the 

t to 
ose 
the 
his 

nsent agenda 
emoved items 
mission.) 

LDWOOD 
UANT TO 

ROPERTY 
NT CORP; 
DING FOR 

Planned 
erty zoned 
nits with a 
ents: Staff 

1 



PAGE
AGENDA

2 

 

 
b. ORDINANCE NO. O2014-36. AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, 
FLORIDA; PROPOSING A SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT TO THE 
ADOPTED LOCAL COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND FUTURE LAND USE MAP IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE COMMUNITY PLANNING ACT OF 2011, AS AMENDED; 
PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. This Ordinance changes the Future Land Use Map designation of Parcel 
D17=034 totaling 1.09 acres from County “Commercial” to City “Commercial” (Attachments: 
Staff Recommends Approval). 

 
c. ORDINANCE NO. O2014-37. AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, 
FLORIDA; PROPOSING A ZONING MAP AMENDMENT TO THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH SECTIONS 3.2 AND 3.3 OF THE LAND DEVELOPMENT 
REGULATIONS; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. This Ordinance changes the Zoning Map designation 
of Parcel D17=034 totaling 1.09 acres from County “CL: Light Commercial” to City “C-3: General 
Commercial: Highway” (Attachments: Staff Recommends Approval). 

 
5. PUBLIC FORUM – 10 minute time limit 

   
6. ORDINANCES FIRST READING ONLY (NO VOTE) 
  
7. RESOLUTIONS FOR APPROVAL 

a. RESOLUTION NO. R2014-24  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 
CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA DETERMINING THAT CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY IS 
SURPLUS; DETERMINING THAT SAID REAL PROPERTY SHOULD BE USED IN A MANNER 
TO FURTHER THE PUBLIC INTEREST; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  This 
Resolution declares 1.1 acres of City owned property within Millennium Park as surplus property 
for the potential sale to the Bright Oaks development for storm-water retention (Attachments: 
Board Option).  
 

8. FINANCIAL & CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS 
a. Utilities Department Requests Approval to purchase a new RTU control unit for Lift 
Station #3 (The Commons) from Data-Flow Systems at a cost of $5,047.90.  (Attachments: Staff 
Recommends Approval). 
 
b. Utilities Department Requests Approval to replace an existing internal re-use pump at 
the Wastewater Treatment Plant as per quotation #664857 from USA BLUEBOOK for the 
amount of $2,977.90.  (Attachments: Staff Recommends Approval). 
 
c. Utilities Department Requests the award of the CR-468 Utility relocation project be 
granted to Hamlet Underground in the amount of $489,865.50.  (Attachments: Staff 
Recommends Approval). 
 

9. GENERAL ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION/DISCUSSION and OTHER BUSINESS 
 a. Staff Requests Workshop for Presentation of IQM2 Agenda Software with targeted dates 

of either Monday, September 8, 2014 at 5:00 p.m. or Monday, September 15, 2014 at 5:00 
p.m.   

 
10. APPOINTMENTS  
 
11. CITY MANAGER REPORTS 
  
12. CITY CLERK REPORTS 



PAGE
AGENDA

3 

 

  
13. OTHER DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

 a. Parks & Recreation Department Reports the following upcoming events for 2014: 
 Friday, September 19th  – Monthly Special Event in the Courtyard: Food Trucks/Live 

Band 
 Thursday, October 9th -  Cats In The Courtyard : Spirit Night for the Wildcat 

Community, Local Food Vendors, Sponsored Photo Booth, DJ, Local Clubs, Wildcat 
Marching Band, Wildcat Football Players & Cheerleaders 

 Friday, October 17th – Monthly Special Event: Health & Fitness Fair in the Courtyard 
 Saturday, December 6th – Christmas In The Courtyard : Santa, Caroling, Food 

Vendors, Christmas Tree Lighting at Dusk.  
 

14. COMMISSION MEMBERS REPORTS 
  
15. CITY ATTORNEY REPORTS 

 Attorney-client closed session is requested by the City Attorney in 
accordance with § 286.011(8)(a), Fla. Stat. (2013). 

 
16. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 

IMPORTANT DATES (No Attachments) 

a. September 1, 2014, Labor Day Holiday, City Hall CLOSED 

b.  September 10, 2014, Commission Meeting 7:00 p.m. WEDNESDAY MEETING 

c. September 19, 2014, Next Special Event  

d.  September 24, 2014 Commission Meeting 7:00 p.m. WEDNESDAY MEETING 



CITY COMMISSION 
CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

REGULAR MEETING 
August 11, 2014 - 7:00 PM 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 
 

(meeting taped) 
 
 
The City Commission of the City of Wildwood met in special session August 11, 2014 at 7:00 
p.m. in the City Hall Commission Chamber. 
 
Present were: Mayor Wolf, Commissioner Bivins, Commissioner Strickland, and Commissioner 
Clark, Commissioner Green.  Also present: City Manager Cannon, Assistant City Manager 
McHugh, CA Hunt, and City Clerk Lippincott, DSD Peavy, UD O’Dell, HR Gibson Smith, PRC 
Wheeler, PW Kornegay, Corley, McClung.  
         
1. CALL TO ORDER: 
       
2. CONSENT AGENDA/INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

(A consent agenda may be presented by the Mayor at the beginning of a meeting.  Items may be removed from the consent 
agenda on the request of any one Commissioner.  Items not removed may be adopted by general consent without debate.  
Removed items may be either taken up immediately after the consent agenda or placed later on the agenda at the discretion of 
the Commission.) 

 
a. Minutes for Approval: July 28, 2014 Regular Meeting 

 
b. Bills for Approval 

 
c. Information item from the University of Florida (UF) regarding Population Estimates for 

the City of Wildwood.  (Attachments:  Staff Recommends Approval). 
 

Motion by Commissioner Green second by Commissioner Bivins to approve the items on the 
Consent Agenda.  Motion carried by unanimous vote 5-0. 
 

3. PRESENTATION AND/OR PROCLAMATIONS (None) 
 

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS – TIMED  
Quasi-judicial Items 
 

5. PUBLIC FORUM – 10 minute time limit    
 
Jenny Tomlinson:  711 Stanley, Neighborhood concerned that Stanley Road was not 
prepared for Detour.  Any plan for the road?  Also concerned about sidewalk access.  Also 
concerned about pile of dirt created by retention pond.  DSD Peavy:  Stated that it is a 
County Project.  If there is an issue with the project then Sumter County would need to be 
addressed.  We do have some information about what the road will look like when finished. 
 

6. ORDINANCES FIRST READING ONLY (NO VOTE) 
 

a. ORDINANCE NO. O2014-33.  AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
GRANTING FOR A RESIDENTIAL PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 8.6 OF THE LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS.  FOR CERTAIN 
PROPERY WITHIN THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA; OWNED BY COAST 
DEVELOPMENT CORP; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Ordinance  

2.a. 
Page 1 of 4



Minutes 
August 11, 2014 
Page 2 
 

establishes the Grand Oaks Manor Planned Development to allow for a residential 
planned development (RPD) overlay on property zoned R-1 (Low Density Residential) 
for 400 Single Family Detached (SFD) residential units with a recreation center and 
other amenity improvements and infrastructure.  (Attachments:  Staff Recommends 
Approval). 

 
b. ORDINANCE NO. O2014-36.  AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, 

FLORIDA; PROPOSING A SMALL SCALLE FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT 
TO THE ADOPTED LOCAL COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE COMMUNITY PLANNING ACT OF 2011, AS AMENDED; 
PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Ordinance changes the Future Land Use Map 
designation of Parcel D17=034 totaling 1.09 acres from County “Commercial” to City 
“Commercial” (Attachments:  Staff Recommends Approval). 
 

c. ORDINANCE NO. O2014-37.  AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, 
FLORIDA; PROPOSING A ZONING MAP AMENDMENT TO THE OFFICIAL ZONING 
MAP IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTIONS 3.2 AND 3.3 OF THE LAND 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING 
FOR CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Ordinance 
changes the Zoning Map designation of Parcel D17=034 totaling 1.09 acres from County 
“CL: Light Commercial” to City “C-3: General Commercial Highway” (Attachments:  Staff 
Recommends Approval).  
 

7. RESOLUTIONS FOR APPROVAL 
 
a. RESOLUTION R2014-23.  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA APPROVING THE SENDING OF NOTIFICATION OF 
THE CITY’S WITHDRAWAL FROM FLORIDA GROUP HEALTH TRUST FUND POOL 
TO PUBLIC RISK MANAGER; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  This 
Resolution is required by Public Risk Manager, the current health provider for the City, in 
order to withdraw from the pool.  (Attachments:  Staff Recommends Approval). 
 

Motion to adopt Resolution R2014-23 by Commissioner Green second by Commissioner 
Strickland.  Motion carried by unanimous vote 5-0. 
 

8. FINANCIAL & CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS 
 
a. Utilities Department Request Approval of Change Order No. 1 to Odyssey Manufacturing 

Co., with no increase in contract price.  (Attachments:  Staff Recommends Approval). 
 
UD O’Dell:  Increase in completion date by 60 days.  Transfer switch was delayed in getting. 
 
Motion to approve request by Commissioner Bivins second by Commissioner Green.  
Motion carried by unanimous vote 5-0. 
 
b. Utilities Department Request Approval of acceptance of construction of the water main 

extension for the Okahumpka Service Plaza and approval of final payment of $40,040.60 
to Salser Construction, LLC.  (Attachments:  Staff Recommends Approval). 

 
 

2.a. 
Page 2 of 4



Minutes  
August 11, 2014 
Page 3 
 

UD O’Dell:  Project is complete.  This is for final retainage payment.  CM Cannon:  We will 
get two thirds of that back per the contract.   
 
Motion to approve request by Commissioner Green second by Commissioner Bivins.  
Motioned carried by unanimous vote 5-0. 
 
c. Utilities Department Request Approval to purchase new VDF Soft start for Millennium 

Park Reuse Pump Station from HD Supply Power Solutions in the amount of $5,390.00 
as per Quotation Number SE8021400.  (Attachments:  Staff Recommends Approval).  

 
UD O’Dell:  Budgeted line item.  $2k savings. 
 
Motion to approve request by Commissioner Green second by Commissioner Strickland.  
Motion carried by unanimous vote 5-0.  

 
d. Public Works Department Request Approval to proceed with the quote from Mid Fla 

Fence & Gate in the amount of $14,250.00 for the fencing of the Palmer Street Public 
Works Facility.  Item included in 2013-2014 budgets.  (Attachments:  Staff Recommends 
Approval). 

 
PW Kornegay:  Received three quotes and Mid Fla were the lowest.   
 
Motion to approve request by Commissioner Strickland second by Commissioner Clark.  
Motion carried by unanimous vote 5-0. 
 

9. GENERAL ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION/DISCUSSION and OTHER BUSINESS (NONE) 
 

10.  APPOINTMENTS (NONE) 
 

11.  CITY MANAGER REPORTS 
 

 Second Budget Workshop August 20th from 9-12. 
 

12.  CITY CLERK REPORTS 
 

13.  OTHER DEPARTMENT REPORTS (NONE) 
 

HRC Gibson Smith:  Employees would like to have a secondary retirement plan besides  
FRS.  I would like to ask permission to bring someone in at no cost to the City to talk to the 
employees about this.  Through payroll deduction.  Mayor Wolf:  Who is your broker or agent 
for this new health insurance?  HRC Gibson Smith:  Digital.  Mayor Wolf:  Where are they?  
Commissioner Strickland:  On-Line.  HRC Gibson Smith:  They have been running our 
Guardian and VSP Dental and I have not had any issue with them since I have been here.   
 
Commission Approved. 

 
14.  COMMISSION MEMBERS REPORTS 

 
 Commissioner Green:  I will be attending the Technology Conference the 14th through the   
16th and report back.  I have noticed Facebook post about the Fruitland Park Police  
 

2.a. 
Page 3 of 4



Minutes  
August 11, 2014 
Page 4 
 

Department and KKK allegations. Do we have any relationship with that Police Department?  
Mayor Wolf:  No. 
 
Commissioner Bivins:  I am no longer at Duke, so would you please use my City email 
address when sending me anything. 

 
15.  CITY ATTORNEY REPORTS 

 
 

 
16.  ADJOURNMENT 

 
Motion to adjourn by Commissioner Bivins second by Commissioner Strickland.  Motion 
carried by unanimous vote 5-0. 

 
 
       CITY COMMISSION 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 
 
S E A L 
       BY: _______________________________ 
ATTEST: ____________________________  Ed Wolf, Mayor 
      Cassandra Lippincott, City Clerk 

2.a. 
Page 4 of 4



CITY COMMISSION-LEGISLATIVE DEPARTMENT

1 Payroll August 10, 2014 Pay Period - 5 Employees 3,995.27$      

CITY MANAGER-EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT

2 Payroll August 10, 2014 Pay Period - 2.5 Employees 7,249.60$      
3 Bright House Internet Service 67.34$           
4 Bill Ed Cannon Car Allowance 500.00$         
5 Capital Office Products Office Supplies 25.19$           
6 Cason and Gaskins TV Inc Cell Phone Pouch 28.99$           
7 Ernie Morris Enterprises, Inc Office Supplies 11.16$           
8 Office Depot Office Supplies 2.59$             

CITY CLERK-FINANCIAL & ADMINISTRATIVE DEPARTMENT

9 Payroll August 10, 2014 Pay Period - 4 Employees 10,303.72$    
10 Alice Borrack Personal Vehicle Use 16.87$           
11 Bright House Internet Service 134.68$         
12 Capital Office Products Office Supplies 39.28$           
13 Department of Management Services Telephone Service 67.23$           
14 Ernie Morris Enterprises, Inc Office Supplies 149.63$         
15 Cassandra Lippincott Personal Vehicle Use 10.64$           
16 MMD Computer Center, Inc. Technical Support 50.00$           
17 Office Depot Office Supplies 10.05$           
18 Wildwood Community Cemetery Budgeted Maintenance Support - Arthur Rivers 340.93$         

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

19 Payroll August 10, 2014 Pay Period - 4.5 Employees 10,226.44$    
20 Bright House Internet Service 151.52$         
21 Office Depot Office Supplies 48.09$           
22 The Daily Commercial Ad 1,433.72$      

HUMAN RESOURCES

23 Payroll August 10, 2014 Pay Period - 1 Employees 2,077.20$      
24 Bright House Internet Service 33.67$           
25 Ernie Morris Enterprises, Inc Office Supplies 9.40$             
26 UPS Postage 3.64$             

27 Payroll August 10, 2014 Pay Period - 33 Employees 74,750.61$    
28 CarQuest Auto Parts Stores Alternator, Brake Rotors, Pads, Belts, Water Pump, Etc 1,838.21$      
29 Cason and Gaskins TV Inc Commando Screen Protector 8.99$             
30 CDW Konica Toner 380.01$         
31 Century Link Telephone Service 577.50$         
32 Covanta Records Destruction 250.00$         
33 Department of Management Services Telephone Service 271.50$         
34 Ernie Morris Enterprises, Inc Office Supplies 801.23$         
35 Leads Online Total Track Service Package 1,758.00$      
36 Maggio Enterprises, Inc Paper Products 105.10$         
37 Security Solutions of Central Florida Keypad and Electronic Latches, Interface Module 2,113.00$      
38 Sirchie Evidence Box, Integrity Bags, Scalpel 309.19$         
39 Trans Union Comp Reports 220.00$         
40 UPS Postage 7.54$             
41 U.S. HealthWorks PE Basic, DS Urine 10 Panel - New Employee 130.00$         
42 Verizon Wireless Blue Tree 1,191.34$      
43 Wildwood Auto Repair & Wrecker Towing WWPD Impound 125.00$         
44 Wildwood Tire Company Tire Repair 51.90$           

BILLS FOR APPROVAL

City of Wildwood, Florida

August 25, 2014

POLICE DEPARTMENT

2.b. 
Page 1 of 3



August 25 2014
Page 2

STREET DEPARTMENT

45 Payroll August 10, 2014 Pay Period - 9.5 Employees 18,996.42$    
46 B & M Equipment Floor Saw Rental 110.46$         
47 Capital Office Products Office Supplies 12.18$           
48 CarQuest Auto Parts Stores Alternator, Belts, Pwr Booster, Filters, Bearings, Etc 589.07$         
49 City Electric Supply Company Bulbs Palmer Street 110.70$         
50 C.R. 466A Landfill Facility, LLC Tipping Fee 28.96$           
51 Duke Energy Electric Service 376.99$         
52 Hunt's Surveying & Mapping Boundary Survey Palmer Street 1,400.00$      
53 John Deere Financial Rolled Rubber Mat 84.90$           
54 J.W.J. Inc Bore Location 700 Huey Street 600.00$         
55 Millings Technologies, Inc Seal Kit 78.66$           
56 Sumter Electric Electric Service 189.01$         
57 Wildwood Tire Company Tires and Repairs 405.50$         

FLEET SERVICES

58 Payroll August 10, 2014 Pay Period - 2.5 Employees 5,279.00$      
59 Big Truck Parts, Inc Filters 135.02$         
60 CarQuest Auto Parts Stores Battery, Fuses, Beams, Shop Towels, Grease, Etc. 969.94$         
61 Newsome Oil Company Kendall Super Oil, Drum Drop 873.95$         
62 Wildwood Tire Company Tires and Repairs 436.62$         

COMMUNITY RE-DEVELOPMENT

63 Payroll August 10, 2014 Pay Period - .5 Employees 1,806.44$      
64 Bright House Internet Service 16.89$           

PARKS AND RECREATION

65 Payroll August 10, 2014 Pay Period - 5.5 Employees 8,178.65$      
66 Bright House Internet Service 67.34$           
67 CarQuest Auto Parts Stores Brake Pads, Bearings, Seals, Tie Rod Ends, Etc 183.01$         
68 Department of Management Services Telephone Service 44.82$           
69 Duke Energy Electric Service 13.06$           
70 Ernie Morris Enterprises, Inc Office Supplies 11.15$           
71 John Deere Landscapes Dylox Insecticide, Seat 163.86$         
72 Office Depot Office Supplies 2.59$             
73 Salescorp of Florida Gatorade 204.00$         
74 Sign Crafters of Central Florida Inc Banner 135.00$         
75 Sumter Electric Electric Service 611.82$         
76 Turfmasters and Associates, Inc Lawn Fertilization and Pest Control 725.00$         
77 Wildwood Tire Company Tires and Repairs 64.74$           

COMMUNITY CENTER & OXFORD COMMUNITY CENTER

78 Arrow Environmental Services Termite Spray Senior Service Building 225.00$         
79 CarQuest Auto Parts Stores Oil Pressure Switch 35.15$           
80 Kohn Construction & Electric, Inc Filters and Belts Service Maintenance 483.00$         
81 Resource One Cleaning Supplies 20.48$           
82 Sumter Electric Electric Service 1,591.99$      
83 Wildwood Tire Company Tires 325.52$         

PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT ADMINISTRATIVE DEPARTMENT

84 Payroll August 10, 2014 Pay Period - 3 Employees 5,415.83$      
85 Bright House Internet Service 101.01$         
86 Ernie Morris Enterprises, Inc Office Supplies 149.62$         
87 MMD Computer Center, Inc. Technical Support 50.00$           
88 Office Depot Office Supplies 46.83$           
89 Postmaster Postage Utility Billing - Leesburg Post Office 235.87$         
90 Deniese Woods Personal Vehicle Use 14.00$           

2.b. 
Page 2 of 3



August 25 2014
Page 3

UTILITY DEPARTMENT 

91 Payroll August 10, 2014 Pay Period - 21 Employees 40,484.72$    
92 Barney's Pumps, Inc Amiad Filter 522.00$         
93 Bright House Internet Service 693.83$         
94 Capital Office Products Office Supplies 191.87$         
95 CarQuest Auto Parts Stores Solenoid, Alternator, Heater Core, Dexron, Hose, Etc 1,650.99$      
96 C & C Peat Co., Inc Wastewater Treatment-Dewatered Bio-Solids 3,520.00$      
97 Data Flow Systems, Inc Pump Repair 89.65$           
98 Duke Energy Electric Service 2,516.22$      
99 Ernie Morris Enterprises, Inc Office Supplies 108.39$         
100 Hamlet Underground CR 462 Water Main Ext Certificate for Payment 27,136.50$    
101 Instrument Specialist Inc Isco Silicone Pump Tubing 308.81$         
102 Mark O'Dell Travel Reimbursement 2014 FRWA Conference 27.57$           
103 Odyssey Manufacturing Hypochlorite Solutions 2,482.53$      
104 Office Depot Office Supplies 82.54$           
105 Harwood Padgett Travel Reimbursement 2014 FRWA Conference 29.91$           
106 Plant Technician Environmental Testing 300.00$         
107 Reed & Shows Meter Repair & Supplies McCrometer and Neptune's and Testing of All 2,275.50$      
108 Ring Power Gas Powered Air Compressor 2,200.00$      
109 Southern Analytical Laboratories Environmental Testing 535.00$         
110 Sumter Electric Electric Service 230.21$         
111 Sunshine State One Call of Florida Inc Locators for the Month of July 2014 813.59$         
112 Sunstate Meter & Supply, Inc T10 Meters, Meter Connections 8,600.71$      
113 TAW Orlando Service Center 75 HP Motor 19,534.63$    
114 The Dumont Company, Inc Hypochlorite Solutions 223.50$         
115 UPS Postage 53.17$           
116 VWR Lyfo Disk 126.32$         
117 Wildwood Tire Company Tires and Repairs 1,922.08$      

MISCELLANEOUS

118 Allstate Life Insurance 140.12$         

GREENWOOD CEMETERY

ATTORNEYS/CONSULTANTS/SURVEYORS

FUEL INVENTORY

TOTAL  290,276.38$  

CITY COMMISSION
CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

S E A L 
                                                                                                                       
ATTEST:_______________________ Ed Wolf, Mayor

Cassandra Lippincott, City Clerk/Finance Dir.

2.b. 
Page 3 of 3



CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

SUBJECT: Grand Oaks Manor Planned Development – RZ 1405-02 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 

 
Approval of Ordinance O2014-33. 

 
  Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: 8/11/14 First Reading 

8/25/14 Adoption 
  Regular Meeting  Special Meeting  
  

 
  

CONTRACT:  N/A Vendor/Entity:   
 Effective Date: _____________ Termination Date:   
 Managing Division / Dept:   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT:  
 

 Annual 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 
 

 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT:  
 N/A  

 

 
 

HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 
  
The applicant seeks approval from the City Commission for a “Planned Development” (PD) zoning 
overlay on a 99.49 acre property zoned “Low Density Residential” (R-1).  The project is a Residential 
Planned Development (RPD) to build up to 400 residential units with amenities and related 
improvements as defined in Ordinance O2014-33. 
 
Pursuant to Section 8.6 of the Land Development Regulations, Ordinance O2014-33 adopts the Grand 
Oaks Manor Planned Development Agreement. The Project’s legal description and conceptual plan 
have been incorporated into the Ordinance as exhibits. The PD Agreement outlines specific criteria 
and standards for the Project. 
 
The proposed development of the Grand Oaks PD will require some mitigation due to the increased 
traffic entering and exiting the development.  As part of their mitigation, the Developer will dedicate a 
right-of-way along CR 472 for the construction of turn lane improvements.  The Sumter County Road 
and Bridge Department has agreed in principle to a conceptual representation of the right-of-way to be 
dedicated, with the understanding that the sidewalk along C-472 will be in an easement within the 
developer’s property (and not on the County’s right-of-way) with a survey and legal description of the 
proposed right-of-way to be provided along with a recorded deed of same in favor of the County when 
the project moves forward to actual construction. 
 
The Sumter County School system has sufficient capacity for additional students that may be added 
as a result of the Project.  The Project shall be required to connect to City utilities. The City has 
sufficient capacity in both water and wastewater to accommodate the Project. 
 
The applicant has responded to and satisfied all comments and concerns raised at the Project Review 
Committee meeting. The Project meets or exceeds the minimum requirements of the Comprehensive 

4.a. 
Page 1 of 32



Plan and
Project b
 
This offic
NOTICES
owners a
Hall and 
newspap
 
Staff rec
 
Case RZ
August 5
of Ordina
 
 

Melanie 
Developm
 

d the Land D
be placed on

ce has duly
S in the City
adjoining the
on the bulle

per of genera

commends a

Z 1405-02 w
5, 2014.  The
ance O2014-

D. Peavy 
ment Service

Developmen
 the Plannin

y noticed th
y of Wildwo
e property in

etin board at 
al circulation

approval of

was consider
e Planning &
-33 to the C

es Director 

nt Regulation
ng and Zonin

his meeting 
od. Notice o
n question. 
the Wildwoo

n (Daily Com

f Ordinance

red by the P
& Zoning Bo
ity Commiss

 

ns, and the 
ng Board age

as prescri
of Hearing h
Notice also 
od Post Offic

mmercial) on 

e #02014-33

Planning & Z
oard/Special
sion. 

Project Rev
enda for con

bed by City
has been se

has been p
ce.  A notice
July 25, 201

3. 

Zoning Boa
 Magistrate 

8/11/14 and

view Commi
nsideration. 

y of Wildwo
ent via Certif
posted on th
e of this mee
14. 

rd/Special M
gave a favo

d 8/25/14 – Page
Grand Oaks Ma

Executive Su

ittee recomm

ood Code f
fied Mail to 
he notice bo
eting was pu

Magistrate o
orable recom

e 2 of 2 
anor PD 
ummary 

 
 

mended the 

for PUBLIC 
all property 

oard at City 
blished in a 

on Tuesday, 
mmendation 

4.a. 
Page 2 of 32



City of Wildwood 
Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate 

The case below was heard on Tuesday, August 5th, 2014 by the Special Magistrate. 
The applicant seeks approval and favorable recommendation from the City of Wildwood 
Planning and Zoning Board/Special Magistrate for a Residential Planned Development 
(RPD) overlay on property zoned R-1 (Low Density Residential) for 400 residential units 
with amenities and related improvements. The site is generally located to the northeast 
of the intersection of C-472 and the CSX right-of-way. The Engineer of Record is 
Charles C. Hiott, P.E. with Booth, Ern, Straughan, and Hiott, Inc. of Tavares, Florida. 

Case: RZ 1405-02 

Parcels: D20=002 and D20=008 

Owner: Coast Development Corp. 

Applicant: SAME 

Under subsections 1.7(B)(2), 3.3(B)(3), and 8.2(E) of the Land Development 
Regulations (LDRs), the Planning and Zoning Board/Special Magistrate has a duty to 
make a recommendation to the City Commission on all proposed zoning amendments 
in accordance with the procedure outlined in subsection 1.14 (B)(3) and the criteria for 
the approval of zoning amendments as defined in subsection 3.3(8)(4) of the LDRs. 

Based upon the testimony and information presented, the Special Magistrate 
recommends approval of the Zoning Map Amendment and favorable recommendation 
of Ordinance 02014-33 to the City Commission. 

Dated: 

Archi~z;;P 
Special Magistrate City of Wildwood 

4.a. 
Page 3 of 32



WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

JUNE 2014 LOCATION MAP

D20=002, D20=008
GRAND OAKS MANORCity of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 540 1,080

Feet

I:
\T

e
rr

i\G
IS

\M
a

p
s\

L
o

ca
tio

n
\L

o
ca

tio
n

 -
 G

ra
n

d
 O

a
ks

 M
a

n
o

r.
m

xd
 -

 6
/9

/2
0

1
4

 1
0

:2
4

:1
2

 A
M

 -
 t

o
n

e
a

l

Legend

D20=002, D20=008

City of Wildwood

4.a. 
Page 4 of 32



C-472

N
E

 42
nd

 B
LV

D
C

R
 1

17

CR 110

GRANT WAY

E
V

E
LY

N
T

O
N

 L
O

O
P

EDWARDS LN

N
E

 41
st L

O
O

P

MORVEN PARK WAY

N
E

 42
nd

 S
T

CRAVEN WAY

COLLINGTON DR

R
AV

E
N

E
L C

T

WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

JUNE 2014 EXISTING ZONING

D20=002, D20=008
GRAND OAKS MANORCity of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 240 480

Feet

I:\
Te

rr
i\G

IS
\M

a
p

s\
E

xi
st

in
g 

&
 P

ro
p

o
se

d
 Z

o
n

in
g

\E
xi

st
in

g
 Z

o
n

in
g

 -
 G

ra
n

d
 O

a
ks

 M
a

no
r.

m
xd

 -
 6

/9
/2

01
4

 1
2:

1
5

:1
7 

P
M

 -
 t

o
n

ea
l

RPUD

A5

RR1C

RR

R1

RR5

RR

PUD

R2

NMU-7

A1

A1

RR

A5

A5

A5

R-1

R-1

R-1

4.a. 
Page 5 of 32



C-472

N
E

 42
nd

 B
LV

D
C

R
 1

17

CR 110

GRANT WAY

E
V

E
LY

N
T

O
N

 L
O

O
P

EDWARDS LN

N
E

 41
st L

O
O

P

MORVEN PARK WAY

N
E

 42
nd

 S
T

CRAVEN WAY

COLLINGTON DR

R
AV

E
N

E
L C

T

WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

JUNE 2014 PROPOSED ZONING OVERLAY

D20=002, D20=008
GRAND OAKS MANORCity of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 240 480

Feet

I:\
Te

rr
i\G

IS
\M

a
p

s\
E

xi
st

in
g 

&
 P

ro
p

o
se

d
 Z

o
n

in
g

\P
ro

p
os

e
d

 Z
on

in
g 

O
ve

rl
a

y 
- 

G
ra

n
d 

O
a

ks
 M

a
n

o
r.

m
xd

 -
 6

/9
/2

0
1

4 
2

:4
0

:5
5

 P
M

 -
 t

on
e

a
l

RPUD

A5

RR1C

RR

R1

RR5

RR

PUD

R2

NMU-7

A1

A1

RR

A5

A5

A5

Ordinance No
O2014-33
Grand Oaks Manor

4.a. 
Page 6 of 32



Page 1 of 9 
Ordinance No. O2014-33 

Grand Oaks Manor Planned Development Agreement 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-33 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD GRANTING A 
REQUEST FOR A RESIDENTIAL PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 8.6 OF THE LAND DEVELOPMENT 
REGULATIONS. FOR CERTAIN PROPERTY WITHIN THE CITY OF 
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA; OWNED BY COAST DEVELOPMENT CORP; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida, as 

follows: 
 
The application filed by Coast Development Corp (hereinafter referred as the, 
“Developer”) for a  Planned Development was heard by and before the City 
Commission, Wildwood, Florida on this 25th day of August, 2014.  Based upon the 
verified application and supporting documents, analyses, maps, charts, other evidence 
and instruments, the advice, report and recommendations of the Project Review 
Committee and the testimony adduced and evidence received at the Public Hearing by 
the Planning and Zoning Board on August 5, 2014 and otherwise being fully advised, 
the City Commission does hereby find and determine as follows: 
 
SECTION 1: GENERAL FINDINGS 
 
A. That the Coast Development Corp Planned Development Application (hereinafter 

referred to as the “Project”) was duly and properly filed herein on May 30, 2014. 
 
B. That all fees required to be borne and paid by the Developer have been paid in 

accordance with the City of Wildwood Fee Schedule. 
 
C. That the Developer intends to develop a Project consisting of 100 acres, more or 

less, which is situated in Wildwood, Florida.  This land is legally described in 
“Exhibit A” attached hereto.  

 
D. That the Developer has complied with the conceptual development plan provision 

as required by Section 8.4 of the Land Development Regulations. 
 
E. That the City has complied with the due notice requirements of subsection 
 3.3(B)(3) of the Land Development Regulations. 

 
SECTION 2: FINDINGS REGARDING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT OVERLAY 
 
A. That the Applicant has applied for a Residential Planned Development (RPD) of 

the lands described in “Exhibit A”. 
 

4.a. 
Page 7 of 32



Page 2 of 9 
Ordinance No. O2014-33 

Grand Oaks Manor Planned Development Agreement 

 

B. That the zoning district of the subject land described in “Exhibit A” is classified as  
Low Density Residential (R-1) on the City of Wildwood Zoning Map.  

 
C. That the Project is consistent with both the City of Wildwood Comprehensive 

Plan, the intent and purpose of the City of Wildwood Land Development 
Regulations, and does promote the public health, safety, morals, welfare, and 
orderly growth of the City of Wildwood. 

 
D. That the City of Wildwood Land Development Regulations are consistent with the 

provisions of the “Planned Development Agreement” as hereinafter set forth in 
Section 3 of this Ordinance. With respect to any conflict between the Land 
Development Regulations and the “Planned Development Agreement”, the 
provisions of the “Planned Development Agreement” shall govern.  Unless 
specific conditions are included in the “Planned Development Agreement” 
waiving or replacing the terms and conditions of the Land Development 
Regulations, the terms and conditions of the most current Land Development 
Regulations shall prevail.   

 
E. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its approval and 

adoption by the City Commission. 
  
 
SECTION 3: PLANNED DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT: GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
A. Development Concept.  The Project shall be developed as a Residential Planned 

Development substantially in accordance with this Ordinance.  This Residential 
Planned Development Agreement shall govern the development of the Project.  

 
B. Conceptual Development Plan. The Project includes a conceptual development 

plan pursuant to Section 8.4 of the Land Development Regulations.  The 
Conceptual Development Plan prepared by Booth, Ern, Straughn Hiott, Inc. 
dated August 2014 is incorporated into this Ordinance as “Exhibit B” attached 
hereto. The conceptual development plan is substantially consistent with City of 
Wildwood Comprehensive Plan.  

 
1) The conceptual development plan illustrates the general location of the 

following land uses: 
 

a. Single Family Residential; 
b. Common areas and buffer easements (open spaces); 
c. Recreational (Parks and open spaces); and 
d. Stormwater retention areas. 

  

4.a. 
Page 8 of 32



Page 3 of 9 
Ordinance No. O2014-33 

Grand Oaks Manor Planned Development Agreement 

 

2) The conceptual development plan is conceptual in nature and may be 
affected or modified by final zoning approval and conditions, by 
compensating storage capacity in flood prone areas, final wetland or 
protected species locations and jurisdictional boundaries, final 
engineering, permitting, surveys, or conservation easements. 

 
C. Development Program. The Project shall be developed in two phases.  
 

1) Residential Development. The residential component of the Project shall 
contain no more than 400 single family housing units. 

 
 2) Maximum Development Potential. Residential development within the 

Project shall not exceed 4 dwelling units/acre.  The maximum number of 
residential units in the Project is 400. 

 
D. Amendments.  The Development Services Director, or designee, shall have the 

authority to approve non-substantial changes to the conceptual development 
plan without a public hearing.  The determination of what constitutes a non-
substantial change shall be at the Development Services Director’s discretion.  
All modifications requiring an amendment to the Planned Development 
Agreement shall require review and recommendation of the Planning and Zoning 
Board and action by the City Commission in the same manner as an Application 
for Planned Development.    

 
E. Future Approvals. After this Ordinance is recorded, and prior to any construction 

occurring, subdivision preliminary plans and improvement plans shall be 
submitted for review and approval in the manner required by Chapter 5 of the 
Land Development Regulations.    

 
F. Developer’s Agreement. Prior to approval of subdivision preliminary plans, the 

City and the Developer agree to enter into an Agreement to address the 
provision of water and wastewater to the Project. The agreement shall also 
specify, among other items, the ownership and maintenance of the infrastructure 
associated with the Project.  

 
G. Principal Uses.  The principal uses permitted within the project are single family 

detached residential and single family attached residential.  
 
H. Development Standards. Unless otherwise noted, the Project shall adhere to the 

zoning district standards prescribed in Chapter 3 of the Land Development 
Regulations for Low Density Residential (R-1).     

 
I. Design District Standards. Unless otherwise noted, the Project shall adhere to 

the Residential Design District Standards pursuant to section 6.12 of the Land 
Development Regulations.  

 

4.a. 
Page 9 of 32



Page 4 of 9 
Ordinance No. O2014-33 

Grand Oaks Manor Planned Development Agreement 

 

J. Design District Standards Modifications, Variations and Detail.   
 

1) Parks and Recreation.  The Project shall contain a minimum of 5 
recreational amenities for the use of the Project’s residents.  

 
a.  Parking shall be provided for the recreation amenities and will be 

designed and shown on construction plans.  
 
 b. Parking spaces for recreational amenities may be a minimum of ten 

 (10) feet wide and eighteen (18) feet deep when fronting a 
 landscaped area or sidewalk. 

 
2) Minimum Lot Requirements.  Lots shall be a minimum of 40’ wide and 

minimum of 3,960 square feet. 
 
3)  Buffers and Setbacks.  
 

a. Phase I – Project buffer widths and planting requirements shall 
adhere to the Design District Standards with the exception of the 
south buffer along CR 472. Along CR 472, the Developer has an 
option of a 20’ landscape buffer or a 6’ solid, decorative wall with 
landscaping. Stormwater retention areas may encroach into 
landscape buffer areas along the west, south and east sides of 
Phase I provided these areas are designed in a way that will 
accommodate the planting requirements. Additional landscaping 
between residential lots and retention areas shall not be required. 

 
b. Phase II – In compliance with the City’s Ordinance #594, an 

ordinance governing the protection of trees and native vegetation 
within the City of Wildwood and in an effort to preserve existing 
trees outside the development area, the Project shall maintain a 50’ 
natural buffer along the north and east sides of Phase II of the 
Project as shown on Exhibit “B”. A portion of the stormwater 
retention area may encroach into the natural buffer area on the 
north side of Phase I as shown on Exhibit “B”. No buffer shall be 
required along the portion of the Project abutting the CSX right of 
way. 

 
c. Setbacks 
 
 Front – 10’ 
 Rear – 10’ 
 Sides – 5’ 
 Front Porches & Accessory Structures – 5’ 
 

4.a. 
Page 10 of 32



Page 5 of 9 
Ordinance No. O2014-33 

Grand Oaks Manor Planned Development Agreement 

 

 Due to the unique design of the project, variable setbacks shall be 
encouraged in areas where design would be appropriate.  

 
 

4)  Open Space. The Project shall maintain a minimum of 25% open space. 
Open space shall include drainage retention areas, entry feature tracts, 
common areas, buffer easements, recreation areas.  For purposes of 
meeting open space requirements, 50% of the drainage retention areas 
(stormwater management areas) may be included in the open space 
calculation but shall not exceed 50% of the total open space for the 
project.  

 
5) Landscape Design.  Yard and common area landscaping will be in
 conformance with the City of Wildwood Land Development Regulations 
 and “Exhibit C.” 
 
6) Floorplans and Elevations.  Project shall provide a minimum of five (5) 

different floor plans.  Each floor plan should have at least two (2) or three 
(3) architecturally distinct and unique elevations with varying color 
schemes. Other elevation requirements listed in Design Standards shall 
not be applicable. For this project, reversed floor plans with varying 
elevations and color schemes will not be considered as identical in design. 

 
7) Mail Facilities.  Cluster mailboxes may be appropriate if approved by Post 

Office. 
 
8) Recreational Vehicle Storage.  The storage of recreational vehicles such 

as boats, campers, trailers or non-commercial vehicles may be permitted 
at alley served homes only. The vehicle must be able to park on the 
driveway apron and not encroach into the alley. 

 
9)  Garage Location and Design.  Garages may comprise 50% or more of the 

front elevation of the home when viewed from the street. 
 
10)  Colors.  Paint color palettes shall be submitted to the City for approval. 
 
11) Residential Lighting.  Project may have the option of not including front 

yard lighting with approval by the Development Services Department and 
proper justification of equivalent or acceptable light provided by another 
source. 

K. Environmental Considerations.   
 

All environmental considerations have been addressed in the Andreyev 
Engineering report submitted with the Planned Development Application.   
 

L. Public Facilities. 

4.a. 
Page 11 of 32



Page 6 of 9 
Ordinance No. O2014-33 

Grand Oaks Manor Planned Development Agreement 

 

 
1) Potable Water, Wastewater, and Irrigation Water. The Project shall be 
connected to the City’s potable water and wastewater system prior to any 
certificates of occupancy being issued. The Project’s Potable and Irrigation 
system shall be a single system connected to the City’s potable water 
system.  The Developer/Project will not construct a separate or dual water 
system for effluent (irrigation).  The Developer/Project may use an existing 
well(s) on the Project site to supplement the water features and irrigate the 
property owner’s association’s parks and common areas.  Expansion of the 
City’s Potable Water and Sanitary Sewer systems, including necessary 
utility easements, shall be negotiated by a separate Developer’s Agreement 
between the City and the Developer. Said agreement shall specify cost, 
ownership and maintenance, and timetables for delivery of services.  
Developer shall provide utility easement along CR 472, outside of the ROW 
dedicated to Sumter County, as needed to accommodate utilities necessary 
for the project.  

 
2) Solid Waste. Solid waste collection services shall be provided by the City 

or the  City’s contracted refuse service provider. Developer shall 
coordinate with Waste Management for refuse collection prior to 
Improvement Plan approval. 

 
3) Stormwater. The Project shall contain a stormwater management system 

 which meets the requirements of the Southwest Florida Water 
 Management District, and Chapter 6, section 6.4 of the City’s Land 
 Development Regulations.  

 
4)  Underground Utilities. All on site utilities shall be underground. Developer 

is responsible for running utilities underground for the Project.  The City 
shall insure that any utilities within any public utilities easement 
encumbering any portion of the Project and serving lands other than the 
Planned Development shall be underground. 

 
 

M. Access and Transportation 
 

1) Access.  Primary entrance to the Project shall be located on CR-472. 
Secondary emergency access shall be required along NE 42nd Boulevard 
as shown on the Exhibit “B”. 

 
2) Transportation System Improvements. There are no impacts to the 

transportation system as identified in the Traffic Impact Analysis submitted 
with the Planned Development application.  The Developer shall install 
right and left turn lanes on CR 472 at the proposed Project entrance. 
Developer shall donate sufficient ROW to Sumter County to accommodate 
required improvements as shown in Exhibit “D”. 

4.a. 
Page 12 of 32



Page 7 of 9 
Ordinance No. O2014-33 

Grand Oaks Manor Planned Development Agreement 

 

 
The Project shall provide a 5’ side walk along CR 472. A 7’ sidewalk 
easement shall be provided to the City as the City will take ownership and 
maintenance of the sidewalk.  

 
3) Internal Roadways.  
 

a. Internal roadways shall have a minimum width of 50’ as shown on 
Exhibit “C”. 

 
b. Service drives may be allowed within the Project and shall be 

minimum of 15’ as shown on Exhibit “B”. Service drives shall be 
recorded easements maintained by the Homeowner’s association. 

 
c. The Project shall provide 5’ sidewalks on both sides of internal road 

ways as shown on Exhibit “B”. Sidewalks shall be owned and 
maintained by the City. 

 
d. Golf carts may be allowed to utilize the roadways within the Project 

if in accordance with the City’s Golf Cart Ordinance. 
 

e. Internal roadways shall be constructed by the Developer and 
dedicated to the City for ownership and maintenance. 

 
N. Maintenance of Common Areas.  Maintenance and repair of structures, lawn 

mowing, and landscaping maintenance of all common areas within the Project 
shall be the responsibility of the property owner or its designee such as a 
property owners association, at no cost or obligation to the City.  The Developer 
shall provide restrictions to the City that will govern the maintenance of common 
areas.   

 
O. Impact Fees. The Planned Development shall be subject to all impact fees 

applicable at the time of permitting. All impact fees are to be paid before 
issuance of any building permit. Proof of Sumter County impact fees paid shall 
be provided to the City of Wildwood. Any impact fees adopted by the City of 
Wildwood, Sumter County or the Sumter County School Board prior to issuance 
of building permits shall also be applicable to the Planned Development.   

 
P. Expiration of Planned Development Agreement.  Actual construction must begin 

within the Planned Development within 24 months of the final adoption of the 
Planned Development Agreement.  If no construction has started on the 
approved Planned Development within 24 months, the Planned Development 
shall lapse and be of no further effect. The City Commission may extend the 
Planned Development for periods of up to six (6) months provided the applicant 
can show good cause why said the Project was delayed under the originally 
approved Planned Development Agreement. However, the City Commission 

4.a. 
Page 13 of 32



Page 8 of 9 
Ordinance No. O2014-33 

Grand Oaks Manor Planned Development Agreement 

 

shall not allow extensions to the commencement of construction beyond 48 
months after the effective date of this Ordinance.   Notwithstanding anything in 
the foregoing, once construction has commenced, construction may continue 
until the completion of the Project. 
 

4.a. 
Page 14 of 32



Page 9 of 9 
Ordinance No. O2014-33 

Grand Oaks Manor Planned Development Agreement 

 

PASSED AND ORDAINED in regular session of the City Commission of the City 
of Wildwood, Sumter County, Florida, this    day of    2014. 

 
 

 
       CITY COMMISSION 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 
 
S E A L 
             
ATTEST:      ED WOLF, MAYOR  
Cassandra Lippincott, City Clerk 
 
First Reading:    
 
Second Reading:    
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
      
Ashley Hunt, City Attorney 

4.a. 
Page 15 of 32



Ordinance O2014-33 

“Exhibit A” 

D20=002 & D20=008 (Grand Oaks Manor) 

Legal Description 

4.a. 
Page 16 of 32



GRAND OAKS MANOR LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Parcel 1. The west ½ of the NW ¼ of the NE ¼ and the west ½ of the SW ¼ of the NE 1/4 , and all that
part of the NE ¼ of NW ¼ lying east of railroad all in section 20, township 18 south, range 23 east,
Sumter County Florida, less the right of way for C 472 across the south side thereof.

Parcel 2. The east ½ of the NW ¼ and the east ½ of the SW ¼ of the NE ¼ of section 20, township 18
south, range 23 east, Sumter County Florida, less the right of way for C 472 across the south side
thereof.

4.a. 
Page 17 of 32



Ordinance O2014-33 

“Exhibit B” 

D20=002 & D20=008 (Grand Oaks Manor) 

Proposed Conceptual Plan 

4.a. 
Page 18 of 32



R
E

TE
N

TI
O

N

R
E

TE
N

TI
O

N
R

E
TE

N
TI

O
N

R
E

TE
N

TI
O

N

TO
T 

LO
T

 F
O

U
N

TA
IN

R
E

TE
N

TI
O

N
R

E
TE

N
TI

O
N

48
' N

A
TU

R
A

L 
B

U
FF

E
R

50' NATURAL BUFFER

50
' N

A
TU

R
A

L 
B

U
FF

E
R

50' NATURAL BUFFER

P
A

S
S

IV
E

 P
A

R
K

PASSIVE PARK

50' NATURAL BUFFER

50
' N

A
TU

R
A

L 
B

U
FF

E
R

O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E

O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E

OPEN SPACE

OPEN SPACE

OPEN SPACE

OPEN SPACE

C
LU

B
H

O
U

S
E

 P
O

O
L

P
A

S
S

IV
E

 P
A

R
K

P
A

S
S

IV
E

 P
A

R
K

D
A

TE
:

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
 B

Y
: C

O
N

C
E

P
T 

P
LA

N
 

14
10

25
.0

00
0

C
C

H

C
C

H

C
C

H

A
U

G
U

S
T 

20
14

GRAND OAKS MANOR
CONCEPT PLAN

LE
G

A
L 

D
E

S
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
 G

R
A

N
D

 O
A

K
S

 M
A

N
O

R
:

P
A

R
C

E
L 

1.
 T

H
E

 W
E

S
T 

1/
2 

O
F 

TH
E

 N
W

 1
/4

 O
F 

N
E

 1
/4

 A
N

D
 T

H
E

 W
E

S
T 

1/
2

O
F 

TH
E

 S
W

 1
/4

 O
F 

TH
E

 N
E

 1
/4

, A
N

D
 A

LL
 T

H
A

T 
P

A
R

T 
O

F 
TH

E
 N

E
 1

/4
 O

F
N

W
 1

/4
 L

Y
IN

G
 E

A
S

T 
O

F 
R

A
IL

R
O

A
D

 A
LL

 IN
 S

E
C

TI
O

N
 2

0,
 T

O
W

N
S

H
IP

 1
8

S
O

U
TH

, R
A

N
G

E
 2

3 
E

A
S

T,
 S

U
M

TE
R

 C
O

U
N

TY
, F

LO
R

ID
A

, L
E

S
S

 R
IG

H
T 

O
F 

W
A

Y
FO

R
 C

-4
72

 A
C

R
O

S
S

 T
H

E
 S

O
U

TH
 S

ID
E

 T
H

E
R

E
O

F.

P
A

R
C

E
L 

2.
 T

H
E

 E
A

S
T 

1/
2 

O
F 

TH
E

 N
W

 1
/4

 O
F 

N
E

 1
/4

 A
N

D
 T

H
E

 E
A

S
T 

1/
2

O
F 

TH
E

 S
W

 1
/4

 O
F 

N
E

 1
/4

 O
F 

S
E

C
TI

O
N

 2
0,

 T
O

W
N

S
H

IP
 1

8 
S

O
U

TH
, R

A
N

G
E

23
 E

A
S

T,
 S

U
M

TE
R

 C
O

U
N

TY
, F

LO
R

ID
A

, L
E

S
S

 R
IG

H
T 

O
F 

W
A

Y
 F

O
R

 C
R

-4
72

A
C

R
O

S
S

 T
H

E
 S

O
U

TH
 S

ID
E

 T
H

E
R

E
O

F.

C
O

U
N

TY
 A

5
C

O
U

N
TY

 A
5

C
O

U
N

TY
 A

5

C
O

U
N

TY
 A

5

C
O

U
N

TY
 R

PU
D

C
O

U
N

TY
 R

PU
D

C
IT

Y 
N

M
U

-7
 

SU
M

M
AR

Y

0 
AC

RE
S

W
ET

LA
ND

S

41
 A

CR
ES

 (4
1%

)
TO

TA
L 

PR
OJ

EC
T 

AR
EA

EM
BA

RQ
TE

LE
PH

ON
E

SE
CO

EL
EC

TR
IC

AL

40
' X

 1
20

' (
79

 L
OT

S)
LO

TS
 S

IZ
ES

 

GR
OS

S 
RE

SI
DE

NT
IA

L 
DE

NS
IT

Y

SA
NI

TA
RY

 S
EW

AG
E

W
AT

ER

4 
LO

TS
 P

ER
 A

CR
E

CI
TY

 O
F 

W
IL

DW
OO

D

CI
TY

 O
F 

W
IL

DW
OO

D

EX
IS

TI
NG

 Z
ON

IN
G

(R
-1

 L
OW

 D
EN

SI
TY

 R
ES

ID
EN

TI
AL

)

SI
NG

LE
 F

AM
IL

Y 
LO

TS
15

4 
LO

TS
 

RE
US

E 
W

AT
ER

CI
TY

 O
F 

W
IL

DW
OO

D

PR
OP

OS
ED

 Z
ON

IN
G

(R
-1

 W
IT

H 
PD

 O
VE

RL
AY

)

66
' X

 6
0'

 (3
1 

LO
TS

)
70

' X
 7

5'
 (4

4 
LO

TS
)

FR
ON

T 
PO

RC
H 

5'
SE

TB
AC

KS
  

RE
AR

 1
0'

 
SI

DE
  5

' 

FR
ON

T 
 1

0'

SI
DE

  1
0'

  C
OR

NE
R

10
.6

0 
AC

RE
S 

(2
5.

85
%

)
IM

PE
RV

IO
US

 R
ES

ID
EN

TI
AL

6.
75

 A
CR

ES
 (1

6.
46

%
)

IM
PE

RV
IO

US
 R

OA
DS

 
0.

64
 A

CR
ES

 (1
.5

6%
)

IM
PE

RV
IO

US
 A

LL
IE

S 

16
.6

7 
AC

RE
S 

(4
0.

66
%

)
OP

EN
 S

PA
CE

 (P
ON

DS
, P

AR
KS

, A
ND

 R
/W

) 

M
AX

IM
UM

 B
UI

LD
IN

G 
HE

IG
HT

 
35

'

CL
UB

 H
OU

SE
AM

EN
IT

IE
S 

N
O

TE
S

:

2.
 T

H
E

 P
R

O
JE

C
T 

W
IL

L 
B

E
G

IN
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
 IN

 N
O

V
E

M
B

E
R

 2
01

4 
A

N
D

 
   

  H
A

S
 A

 P
R

O
JE

C
TE

D
 B

U
IL

D
 O

U
T 

D
A

TE
 O

F 
D

E
C

E
M

B
E

R
 2

01
7.

 

3.
 T

H
IS

 P
R

O
JE

C
T 

W
IL

L 
B

E
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TE
D

 IN
 2

 P
H

A
S

E
S

.

4.
 S

IG
N

A
G

E
 W

IL
L 

B
E

 P
O

S
TE

D
 IN

 A
C

C
O

R
D

A
N

C
E

 W
IT

H
 T

H
E

 M
U

TC
D

 F
O

R
 C

E
N

TE
R

 L
IN

E
 R

A
D

IU
S

.

5.
 A

LL
E

Y
 W

A
Y

S
 O

R
 C

O
N

S
ID

E
R

E
D

 A
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 D

R
IV

E
 A

N
D

 W
IL

L 
B

E
 C

O
N

N
E

C
TE

D
 T

O
 

S
C

A
LE

 IN
 F

E
E

T

S
ca

le
: 1

"=
16

0 

0'
16

0'
16

0'
32

0'

6.
 W

A
TE

R
 A

N
D

 S
E

W
E

R
 IS

 L
O

C
A

TE
D

 O
N

 T
H

E
 S

O
U

TH
 W

E
S

T 
C

O
R

N
E

R
 O

F 
TH

E
 R

A
IL

 R
O

A
D

A
N

D
 C

R
 4

72
 A

P
P

R
O

X
IM

A
TE

LY
 5

00
' A

W
A

Y

PR
O

JE
C

T 
SI

TE
 

IN
TE

R
N

A
L 

S
TR

E
E

TS
 B

Y
 A

P
R

O
N

S
. 

EM
ER

G
EN

C
Y 

AC
C

ES
S

TU
RN

 L
AN

ES
 P

ER
 T

RA
FF

IC
 S

TU
D

Y

6.
34

 A
CR

ES
 (1

5.
46

%
)

PE
RV

IO
US

 A
RE

A 
IN

 T
HE

 L
OT

S 

C
O

U
N

TY
 R

R5

C
O

U
N

TY
 R

R

C
O

U
N

TY
 R

2

COUNTY RR1C

PH
AS

E 
2

PH
AS

E 
1

PH
AS

E 
1 

PH
AS

E 
2

0 
AC

RE
S

59
 A

CR
ES

 (5
9%

)

EM
BA

RQ

SE
CO

40
' X

 1
20

' (
80

 L
OT

S)

4 
LO

TS
 P

ER
 A

CR
E

CI
TY

 O
F 

W
IL

DW
OO

D

CI
TY

 O
F 

W
IL

DW
OO

D

(R
-1

 L
OW

 D
EN

SI
TY

 R
ES

ID
EN

TI
AL

)

24
6 

LO
TS

 

CI
TY

 O
F 

W
IL

DW
OO

D

(R
-1

 W
IT

H 
PD

 O
VE

RL
AY

)

66
' X

 6
0'

 (8
7 

LO
TS

)
70

' X
 7

5'
 (7

9 
LO

TS
)

FR
ON

T 
PO

RC
H 

5'

RE
AR

 1
0'

 
SI

DE
  5

' 

FR
ON

T 
 1

0'

SI
DE

  1
0'

  C
OR

NE
R

16
.9

4 
AC

RE
S 

(2
8.

71
%

)
8.

39
 A

CR
ES

 (1
4.

22
%

)
0.

33
 A

CR
ES

 (0
.5

6%
)

23
.2

0 
AC

RE
S 

(3
9.

32
%

)

35
'

NA
TU

RA
L 

OA
K 

HA
M

M
OC

KS
 

W
AL

KI
NG

 T
RA

IL

TO
T 

LO
T 

10
.1

4 
AC

RE
S 

(1
7.

19
%

)

PO
OL

PA
SS

IV
E 

PA
RK

S 
(2

)
PA

SS
IV

E 
PA

RK
S 

(2
)

P
LA

N
N

E
D

 D
E

V
E

LO
P

M
E

N
T 

A
G

R
E

E
M

E
N

T.
1.

 E
A

C
H

 L
O

T 
W

IL
L 

R
E

Q
U

IR
E

 1
 T

R
E

E
 P

E
R

 

4.a. 
Page 19 of 32



Ordinance O2014-33 

“Exhibit C” 

D20=002 & D20=008 (Grand Oaks Manor) 

Details Plan - Typical Cross Sections 

4.a. 
Page 20 of 32



NO
T 

TO
 S

CA
LE13

'

2%
 S

LO
PE

2%
 S

LO
PE

2%
 S

LO
PE

TY
PI

CA
L 

ST
RE

ET
 S

EC
TI

ON

2%
 S

LO
PE

LINE
REAR LOT

2%

NO
T 

TO
 S

CA
LE

1.
5'

6'
6'

1.
5'

2%

LO
TS

 IN
VE

RT
ED

 C
RO

W
N

FI
NI

SH
 G

RA
DE

TY
PI

CA
L 

SE
RV

IC
E 

DR
IV

E 
FO

R 
AL

LE
Y

VA
RI

ES

2%
 S

LO
PE

NO
T 

TO
 S

CA
LE

SI
TE

 E
NT

RA
NC

E
SI

NG
LE

 F
AM

IL
Y

VA
RI

ES
2%

 S
LO

PE

SI
NG

LE
 F

AM
IL

Y

D
A

TE
:

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
 B

Y
: C

O
N

C
E

P
T 

P
LA

N
 

14
10

25
.0

00
0

C
C

H

C
C

H

C
C

H

A
U

G
U

S
T 

20
14

GRAND OAKS MANOR
DETAILS PLAN

2%
 S

LO
PE

2%
 S

LO
PE

4.a. 
Page 21 of 32



Ordinance O2014-33 

“Exhibit D” 

D20=002 & D20=008 (Grand Oaks Manor) 

C-472 Improvements – Typical Cross Sections 

4.a. 
Page 22 of 32



EXISTING ROW

RT
. T

UR
N 

LA
NE

PR
OP

OS
ED

 1
2'

2'

PA
VE

D
SH

DR

NE
W

SH
DR

EXISTING ROW

PA
VE

D

2'

 (A
.A

.S
.H

.T
.O

. T
-1

80
)

M
AT

CH
 E

XI
ST

. C
RO

SS
 S

LO
PE

*1
2"

 S
TA

BI
LI

ZE
D 

SU
BG

RA
DE

(L
BR

 4
0)

, 9
8%

 M
AX

. D
EN

SI
TY

SE
CT

IO
N 

A-
A

NT
S

*1
0"

 L
IM

E 
RO

CK
 B

AS
E,

 P
RI

M
ED

, S
AN

DE
D 

(L
BR

 1
00

)

2"
 T

RA
FF

IC
 L

EV
EL

 C
 S

UP
ER

 P
AV

E 
AS

PH
AL

T

LE
FT

 T
UR

N 
LA

NE
TH

RU
 L

AN
E

PA
IN

TE
D 

TR
AF

FI
C 

SE
PA

RA
TI

ON
 M

AR
KI

NG
S

W
ID

TH
 V

AR
IE

S 
FR

OM
 1

2'
 W

ID
E 

TO
 0

'

 (2
 L

IF
TS

) 9
8%

 M
AX

. D
EN

SI
TY

1.
5 

IN
CH

E 
0F

 F
C-

6 
W

/ G
RO

UN
D 

RU
BB

ER

2%

PR
OP

OS
ED

 1
2'

2'
±

FR
OM

 3
 L

AN
ES

 T
O 

EX
IS

TI
NG

NE
W

 A
SP

HA
LT

  W
ID

TH
  V

AR
IE

S 
32

'-4
4'

PR
OP

OS
ED

 1
2'

EX
IS

TI
NG

 2
4'

 T
RA

VE
L 

LA
NE

S 
C.

R.
 4

72

LC

EX
IS

TI
NG

 6
6'

 R
OW

TH
RU

 L
AN

E SL
OP

E
2%

PR
OP

OS
ED

 1
2'PA

VE
D 

SH
LD

R
EX

IS
TI

NG
2'

±

2'

M
AT

CH
 E

XI
ST

. 
M

AT
CH

 E
XI

ST
. 

SL
OP

E

PR
IO

R 
TO

 M
IL

LI
NG

EX
IS

T.
 P

AV
IN

G 
M

AT
L.

SA
W

CU
T 

AN
D 

RE
M

OV
E

NE
W

PA
VE

D
SH

DR

NE
W

PA
VE

D 
SH

LD
R

EX
IS

TI
NG

4:1
 M

AX
.

EX
IS

TI
NG

 2
8'

 P
AV

ED
 C

.R
. 4

72
SH

AL
L 

BE
 M

IL
LE

D 
TO

 1
-1

/2
"

8"
 L

IM
ER

OC
K 

LB
R 

10
0 

@
 9

8%
DE

NS
IT

Y 
(M

OD
IF

IE
D 

PR
OC

TO
R)

 A
AS

HT
O 

T-
18

0
PR

IM
ED

 A
ND

 S
AN

DE
D

1.
5"

 O
F 

FC
-6

 W
/G

RO
UN

D 
RU

BB
ER

 T
IR

E
(N

EW
 4

' W
ID

E 
PA

VE
D 

SH
OU

LD
ER

 

8"
 L

IM
ER

OC
K 

LB
R 

10
0 

@
 9

8%
DE

NS
IT

Y 
(M

OD
IF

IE
D 

PR
OC

TO
R)

 A
AS

HT
O 

T-
18

0
PR

IM
ED

 A
ND

 S
AN

DE
D

TY
P.

*1
2"

 S
TA

BI
LI

ZE
D 

SU
BG

RA
DE

(L
BR

 4
0)

, 9
8%

 M
AX

. D
EN

SI
TY

*1
2"

 S
TA

BI
LI

ZE
D 

SU
BG

RA
DE

(L
BR

 4
0)

, 9
8%

 M
AX

. D
EN

SI
TY

NE
W

 P
AV

EM
EN

T 
SU

RF
AC

E 
CO

NS
IS

TS
 O

F

NE
W

 P
AV

EM
EN

T 
SU

RF
AC

E 
CO

NS
IS

TS
 O

F
(L

BR
 4

0)
, 9

8%
 M

AX
. D

EN
SI

TY
*1

2"
 S

TA
BI

LI
ZE

D 
SU

BG
RA

DE
(L

BR
 4

0)
, 9

8%
 M

AX
. D

EN
SI

TY
*1

2"
 S

TA
BI

LI
ZE

D 
SU

BG
RA

DE

TY
P.

PR
IM

ED
 A

ND
 S

AN
DE

D
DE

NS
IT

Y 
(M

OD
IF

IE
D 

PR
OC

TO
R)

 A
AS

HT
O 

T-
18

0
8"

 L
IM

ER
OC

K 
LB

R 
10

0 
@

 9
8%

PR
IM

ED
 A

ND
 S

AN
DE

D
DE

NS
IT

Y 
(M

OD
IF

IE
D 

PR
OC

TO
R)

 A
AS

HT
O 

T-
18

0
8"

 L
IM

ER
OC

K 
LB

R 
10

0 
@

 9
8%

SH
AL

L 
BE

 M
IL

LE
D 

TO
 1

-1
/2

"
EX

IS
TI

NG
 2

8'
 P

AV
ED

 C
.R

. 4
72

4:1
 M

AX
.

E.O.P.

LI
M
IT

SP
EE
D

45
2.

00
'

7.00' (MIN.)

OR
 E

QU
IV

AL
EN

T

OR
 E

QU
IV

AL
EN

T
VS

-2
 C

AP
, V

UL
CA

N 
BR

AC
KE

T

VS
-2

 C
RO

SS
, V

UL
CA

N 
BR

AC
KE

T

NA
M

E 
SI

GN
.

ST
RE

ET
 N

AM
E 

SI
GN

GA
LV

AN
IZ

ED
 P

OS
TS

10
' X

 2
-3

/8
" O

.D
. R

OU
ND

 

5.00' (MIN.)

6.
00

'

ST
OP

 S
IG

N 
(R

1-
1)

CO
M

B.
 S

TO
P/

 S
TR

EE
T 

NA
M

E 
SI

GN
 

"S
PE

ED
 L

IM
IT

" 
SI

GN
 (

R2
-1

)

TO
P 

TO
 B

OT
TO

M
. W

HI
TE

 M
AR

GI
N 

ON
 S

TR
EE

T
PR

EF
IX

 A
ND

 S
UF

FI
X 

UP
PE

R 
CA

SE
, C

EN
TE

RE
D

ST
RE

ET
 N

AM
E 

SI
GN

 D
ET

AI
L

EX
IS

TI
NG

PA
VE

D 
SH

LD
R

NE
W

SA
W

CU
T 

AN
D 

RE
M

OV
E

EX
IS

T.
 P

AV
IN

G 
M

AT
L.

PR
IO

R 
TO

 M
IL

LI
NG

SL
OP

E
M

AT
CH

 E
XI

ST
. 

M
AT

CH
 E

XI
ST

. 

2'
±

EX
IS

TI
NG

PA
VE

D 
SH

LD
R

PR
OP

OS
ED

 1
2'

2%
SL

OP
E

TH
RU

 L
AN

E

EX
IS

TI
NG

 6
6'

 R
OW

C L

EX
IS

TI
NG

 2
4'

 T
RA

VE
L 

LA
NE

S 
C.

R.
 4

72

PR
OP

OS
ED

 1
2'

NE
W

 A
SP

HA
LT

  W
ID

TH
  4

4'

2'
± PR

OP
OS

ED
 1

2'

OR

2%

1.
5 

IN
CH

E 
0F

 F
C-

6 
W

/ G
RO

UN
D 

RU
BB

ER

 (2
 L

IF
TS

) 9
8%

 M
AX

. D
EN

SI
TY

W
ID

TH
 V

AR
IE

S 
FR

OM
 1

2'
 W

ID
E 

TO
 0

'
PA

IN
TE

D 
TR

AF
FI

C 
SE

PA
RA

TI
ON

 M
AR

KI
NG

S

TH
RU

 L
AN

E
ST

RI
PE

D 
IS

LA
ND

2"
 T

RA
FF

IC
 L

EV
EL

 C
 S

UP
ER

 P
AV

E 
AS

PH
AL

T

*1
0"

 L
IM

E 
RO

CK
 B

AS
E,

 P
RI

M
ED

, S
AN

DE
D 

(L
BR

 1
00

)

NT
S

SE
CT

IO
N 

B-
B

(L
BR

 4
0)

, 9
8%

 M
AX

. D
EN

SI
TY

*1
2"

 S
TA

BI
LI

ZE
D 

SU
BG

RA
DE

M
AT

CH
 E

XI
ST

. C
RO

SS
 S

LO
PE

 (A
.A

.S
.H

.T
.O

. T
-1

80
)

2'

PA
VE

D

4:1
 M

AX
.

SH
DR

PROPOSED R/W LINE

PR
OP

OS
ED

 8
0'

 R
OW

PROPOSED R/W LINE

PR
OP

OS
ED

 8
0'

 R
OW

EXISTING ROW

EXISTING ROW

1.
5"

 O
F 

FC
-6

 W
/G

RO
UN

D 
RU

BB
ER

 T
IR

E
(N

EW
 4

' W
ID

E 
PA

VE
D 

SH
OU

LD
ER

 

1.
5"

 O
F 

FC
-6

 W
/G

RO
UN

D 
RU

BB
ER

 T
IR

E
(N

EW
 4

' W
ID

E 
PA

VE
D 

SH
OU

LD
ER

 

1.
5"

 O
F 

FC
-6

 W
/G

RO
UN

D 
RU

BB
ER

 T
IR

E
(N

EW
 4

' W
ID

E 
PA

VE
D 

SH
OU

LD
ER

 

4:1
 M

AX
.

D
A

TE
:

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
 B

Y
: C

O
N

C
E

P
T 

P
LA

N
 

14
10

25
.0

00
0

C
C

H

C
C

H

C
C

H

A
U

G
U

S
T 

20
14

GRAND OAKS MANOR
C.R. 472

4.a. 
Page 23 of 32



 

Page 1 of 9 
Ordinance No. O2014-33 

Grand Oaks Manor Planned Development Agreement 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-33 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD GRANTING A 
REQUEST FOR A RESIDENTIAL PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 8.6 OF THE LAND DEVELOPMENT 
REGULATIONS. FOR CERTAIN PROPERTY WITHIN THE CITY OF 
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA; OWNED BY COAST DEVELOPMENT CORP; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida, as 

follows: 
 
The application filed by Coast Development Corp (hereinafter referred as the, 
“Developer”) for a  Planned Development was heard by and before the City 
Commission, Wildwood, Florida on this ______25th day of __________August, 2014.  
Based upon the verified application and supporting documents, analyses, maps, charts, 
other evidence and instruments, the advice, report and recommendations of the Project 
Review Committee and the testimony adduced and evidence received at the Public 
Hearing by the Planning and Zoning Board on_______________, August 5, 2014 and 
otherwise being fully advised, the City Commission does hereby find and determine as 
follows: 
 
SECTION 1: GENERAL FINDINGS 
 
A. That the Coast Development Corp Planned Development Application (hereinafter 

referred to as the “Project”) was duly and properly filed herein on May 30, 2014. 
 
B. That all fees required to be borne and paid by the Developer have been paid in 

accordance with the City of Wildwood Fee Schedule. 
 
C. That the Developer intends to develop a Project consisting of 100 acres, more or 

less, which is situated in Wildwood, Florida.  This land is legally described in 
“Exhibit A” attached hereto.  

 
D. That the Developer has complied with the conceptual development plan provision 

as required by Section 8.4 of the Land Development Regulations. 
 
E. That the City has complied with the due notice requirements of subsection 
 3.3(B)(3) of the Land Development Regulations. 

 
SECTION 2: FINDINGS REGARDING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT OVERLAY 
 
A. That the Applicant has applied for a Residential Planned Development (RPD) of 

the lands described in “Exhibit A”. 
 

4.a. 
Page 24 of 32



 

Page 2 of 9 
Ordinance No. O2014-33 

Grand Oaks Manor Planned Development Agreement 

 

B. That the zoning district of the subject land described in “Exhibit A” is classified as  
Low Density Residential (R-1) on the City of Wildwood Zoning Map.  

 
C. That the Project is consistent with both the City of Wildwood Comprehensive 

Plan, the intent and purpose of the City of Wildwood Land Development 
Regulations, and does promote the public health, safety, morals, welfare, and 
orderly growth of the City of Wildwood. 

 
D. That the City of Wildwood Land Development Regulations are consistent with the 

provisions of the “Planned Development Agreement” as hereinafter set forth in 
Section 3 of this Ordinance. With respect to any conflict between the Land 
Development Regulations and the “Planned Development Agreement”, the 
provisions of the “Planned Development Agreement” shall govern.  Unless 
specific conditions are included in the “Planned Development Agreement” 
waiving or replacing the terms and conditions of the Land Development 
Regulations, the terms and conditions of the most current Land Development 
Regulations shall prevail.   

 
E. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its approval and 

adoption by the City Commission. 
  
 
SECTION 3: PLANNED DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT: GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
A. Development Concept.  The Project shall be developed as a Residential Planned 

Development substantially in accordance with this Ordinance.  This Residential 
Planned Development Agreement shall govern the development of the Project.  

 
B. Conceptual Development Plan. The Project includes a conceptual development 

plan pursuant to Section 8.4 of the Land Development Regulations.  The 
Conceptual Development Plan prepared by Booth, Ern, Straughn Hiott, Inc. 
dated _____________,August 2014 is incorporated into this Ordinance as 
“Exhibit B” attached hereto. The conceptual development plan is substantially 
consistent with City of Wildwood Comprehensive Plan.  

 
1) The conceptual development plan illustrates the general location of the 

following land uses: 
 

a. Single Family Residential; 
b. Common areas and buffer easements (open spaces); 
c. Recreational (Parks and open spaces); and 
d. Stormwater retention areas. 

  

4.a. 
Page 25 of 32



 

Page 3 of 9 
Ordinance No. O2014-33 

Grand Oaks Manor Planned Development Agreement 

 

2) The conceptual development plan is conceptual in nature and may be 
affected or modified by final zoning approval and conditions, by 
compensating storage capacity in flood prone areas, final wetland or 
protected species locations and jurisdictional boundaries, final 
engineering, permitting, surveys, or conservation easements. 

 
C. Development Program. The Project shall be developed in two phases.  
 

1) Residential Development. The residential component of the Project shall 
contain no more than 400 single family housing units. 

 
 2) Maximum Development Potential. Residential development within the 

Project shall not exceed 4 dwelling units/acre.  The maximum number of 
residential units in the Project is 400. 

 
D. Amendments.  The Development Services Director, or designee, shall have the 

authority to approve non-substantial changes to the conceptual development 
plan without a public hearing.  The determination of what constitutes a non-
substantial change shall be at the Development Services Director’s discretion.  
All modifications requiring an amendment to the Planned Development 
Agreement shall require review and recommendation of the Planning and Zoning 
Board and action by the City Commission in the same manner as an Application 
for Planned Development.    

 
E. Future Approvals. After this Ordinance is recorded, and prior to any construction 

occurring, subdivision preliminary plans and improvement plans shall be 
submitted for review and approval in the manner required by Chapter 5 of the 
Land Development Regulations.    

 
F. Developer’s Agreement. Prior to approval of subdivision preliminary plans, the 

City and the Developer agree to enter into an Agreement to address the 
provision of water and wastewater to the Project. The agreement shall also 
specify, among other items, the ownership and maintenance of the infrastructure 
associated with the Project.  

 
G. Principal Uses.  The principal uses permitted within the project are single family 

detached residential and single family attached residential.  
 
H. Development Standards. Unless otherwise noted, the Project shall adhere to the 

zoning district standards prescribed in Chapter 3 of the Land Development 
Regulations for Low Density Residential (R-1).     

 
I. Design District Standards. Unless otherwise noted, the Project shall adhere to 

the Residential Design District Standards pursuant to section 6.12 of the Land 
Development Regulations.   

 

4.a. 
Page 26 of 32



 

Page 4 of 9 
Ordinance No. O2014-33 

Grand Oaks Manor Planned Development Agreement 

 

J. Recreation and Open Space.  The Project shall maintain a minimum of 25% 
open space.J. Design District Standards Modifications, Variations and 
Detail.   

 
1) Parks and Recreation.  The Project shall contain a minimum of 5 

recreational amenities for the use of the Project’s residents.  
 

a.  Parking shall be provided for the recreation amenities and will be 
designed and shown on construction plans.  

 
 b. Parking spaces for recreational amenities may be a minimum of ten 

 (10) feet wide and eighteen (18) feet deep when fronting a 
 landscaped area or sidewalk. 

 
2) Minimum Lot Requirements.  Lots shall be a minimum of 40’ wide and 

minimum of 3,960 square feet. 
 
3)  Buffers and Setbacks.  
 

a. Phase I – Project buffer widths and planting requirements shall 
adhere to the Design District Standards with the exception of the 
south buffer along CR 472. Along CR 472, the Developer has an 
option of a 20’ landscape buffer or a 6’ solid, decorative wall with 
landscaping. Stormwater retention areas may encroach into 
landscape buffer areas along the west, south and east sides of 
Phase I provided these areas are designed in a way that will 
accommodate the planting requirements. Additional landscaping 
between residential lots and retention areas shall not be required. 

 
b. Phase II – In compliance with the City’s Ordinance #594, an 

ordinance governing the protection of trees and native vegetation 
within the City of Wildwood and in an effort to preserve existing 
trees outside the development area, the Project shall maintain a 50’ 
natural buffer along the north and east sides of Phase II of the 
Project as shown on Exhibit “B”. A portion of the stormwater 
retention area may encroach into the natural buffer area on the 
north side of Phase I as shown on Exhibit “B”. No buffer shall be 
required along the portion of the Project abutting the CSX right of 
way. 

 
c. Setbacks 
 
 Front – 10’ 
 Rear – 10’ 
 Sides – 5’ 
 Front Porches & Accessory Structures – 5’ 

4.a. 
Page 27 of 32



 

Page 5 of 9 
Ordinance No. O2014-33 

Grand Oaks Manor Planned Development Agreement 

 

 
 Due to the unique design of the project, variable setbacks shall be 

encouraged in areas where design would be appropriate.  
 

 
4)  Open Space. The Project shall maintain a minimum of 25% open space. 

Open space shall include drainage retention areas, entry feature tracts, 
common areas, buffer easements, recreation areas.  For purposes of 
meeting open space requirements, 50% of the drainage retention areas 
(stormwater management areas) may be included in the open space 
calculation but shall not exceed 50% of the total open space for the 
project.  

 
5) Landscape Design.  Yard and common area landscaping will be in
 conformance with the City of Wildwood Land Development Regulations 
 and “Exhibit C.” 
 
6) Floorplans and Elevations.  Project shall provide a minimum of five (5) 

different floor plans.  Each floor plan should have at least two (2) or three 
(3) architecturally distinct and unique elevations with varying color 
schemes. Other elevation requirements listed in Design Standards shall 
not be applicable. For this project, reversed floor plans with varying 
elevations and color schemes will not be considered as identical in design. 

 
7) Mail Facilities.  Cluster mailboxes may be appropriate if approved by Post 

Office. 
 
8) Recreational Vehicle Storage.  The storage of recreational vehicles such 

as boats, campers, trailers or non-commercial vehicles may be permitted 
at alley served homes only. The vehicle must be able to park on the 
driveway apron and not encroach into the alley. 

 
9)  Garage Location and Design.  Garages may comprise 50% or more of the 

front elevation of the home when viewed from the street. 
 
10)  Colors.  Paint color palettes shall be submitted to the City for approval. 
 
11) Residential Lighting.  Project may have the option of not including front 

yard lighting with approval by the Development Services Department and 
proper justification of equivalent or acceptable light provided by another 
source. 

K. Environmental Considerations.   
 

All environmental considerations have been addressed in the Andreyev 
Engineering report submitted with the Planned Development Application.   
 

4.a. 
Page 28 of 32



 

Page 6 of 9 
Ordinance No. O2014-33 

Grand Oaks Manor Planned Development Agreement 

 

L. Public Facilities. 
 

1) Potable Water, Wastewater, and Irrigation Water. The Project shall be 
connected to the City’s potable water and wastewater system prior to any 
certificates of occupancy being issued. The Project’s Potable and Irrigation 
system shall be a single system connected to the City’s potable water 
system.  The Developer/Project will not construct a separate or dual water 
system for effluent (irrigation).  The Developer/Project may use an existing 
well(s) on the Project site to supplement the water features and irrigate the 
property owner’s association’s parks and common areas.  Expansion of the 
City’s Potable Water and Sanitary Sewer systems, including necessary 
utility easements, shall be negotiated by a separate Developer’s Agreement 
between the City and the Developer. Said agreement shall specify cost, 
ownership and maintenance, and timetables for delivery of services.  
Developer shall provide utility easement along CR 472, outside of the ROW 
dedicated to Sumter County, as needed to accommodate utilities necessary 
for the project.  

 
2) Solid Waste. Solid waste collection services shall be provided by the City 

or the  City’s contracted refuse service provider. Developer shall 
coordinate with Waste Management for refuse collection prior to 
Improvement Plan approval. 

 
3) Stormwater. The Project shall contain a stormwater management system 

 which meets the requirements of the Southwest Florida Water 
 Management District, and Chapter 6, section 6.4 of the City’s Land 
 Development Regulations.  

 
4)  Underground Utilities. All on site utilities shall be underground. Developer 

is responsible for running utilities underground for the Project.  The City 
shall insure that any utilities within any public utilities easement 
encumbering any portion of the Project and serving lands other than the 
Planned Development shall be underground. 

 
 

M. Access and Transportation 
 

1) Access.  Primary entrance to the Project shall be located on CR-472. 
Secondary emergency access shall be required along NE 42nd Boulevard 
as shown on the Exhibit “B”. 

 
2) Transportation System Improvements. There are no impacts to the 

transportation system as identified in the Traffic Impact Analysis submitted 
with the Planned Development application.  The Developer shall install 
right and left turn lanes on CR 472 at the proposed Project entrance. 

4.a. 
Page 29 of 32



 

Page 7 of 9 
Ordinance No. O2014-33 

Grand Oaks Manor Planned Development Agreement 

 

Developer shall donate sufficient ROW to Sumter County to accommodate 
required improvements as shown in Exhibit “D”. 

 
The Project shall provide a 5’ side walk along CR 472. A 7’ sidewalk 
easement shall be provided to the City as the City will take ownership and 
maintenance of the sidewalk.  

 
3) Internal Roadways.  
 

a. Internal roadways shall have a minimum width of 50’ as shown on 
Exhibit “C”. 

 
b. Service drives may be allowed within the Project and shall be 

minimum of 15’ as shown on Exhibit “B”. Service drives shall be 
recorded easements maintained by the Homeowner’s association. 

 
c. The Project shall provide 5’ sidewalks on both sides of internal road 

ways as shown on Exhibit “B”. Sidewalks shall be owned and 
maintained by the City. 

 
d. Golf carts may be allowed to utilize the roadways within the Project 

if in accordance with the City’s Golf Cart Ordinance. 
 

e. Internal roadways shall be constructed by the Developer and 
dedicated to the City for ownership and maintenance. 

 
N. Maintenance of Common Areas.  Maintenance and repair of structures, lawn 

mowing, and landscaping maintenance of all common areas within the Project 
shall be the responsibility of the property owner or its designee such as a 
property owners association, at no cost or obligation to the City.  The Developer 
shall provide restrictions to the City that will govern the maintenance of common 
areas.   

 
O. Impact Fees. The Planned Development shall be subject to all impact fees 

applicable at the time of permitting. All impact fees are to be paid before 
issuance of any building permit. Proof of Sumter County impact fees paid shall 
be provided to the City of Wildwood. Any impact fees adopted by the City of 
Wildwood, Sumter County or the Sumter County School Board prior to issuance 
of building permits shall also be applicable to the Planned Development.   

 
P. Expiration of Planned Development Agreement.  Actual construction must begin 

within the Planned Development within 24 months of the final adoption of the 
Planned Development Agreement.  If no construction has started on the 
approved Planned Development within 24 months, the Planned Development 
shall lapse and be of no further effect. The City Commission may extend the 
Planned Development for periods of up to six (6) months provided the applicant 

4.a. 
Page 30 of 32



 

Page 8 of 9 
Ordinance No. O2014-33 

Grand Oaks Manor Planned Development Agreement 

 

can show good cause why said the Project was delayed under the originally 
approved Planned Development Agreement. However, the City Commission 
shall not allow extensions to the commencement of construction beyond 48 
months after the effective date of this Ordinance.   Notwithstanding anything in 
the foregoing, once construction has commenced, construction may continue 
until the completion of the Project. 
 

4.a. 
Page 31 of 32



 

Page 9 of 9 
Ordinance No. O2014-33 

Grand Oaks Manor Planned Development Agreement 

 

PASSED AND ORDAINED in regular session of the City Commission of the City 
of Wildwood, Sumter County, Florida, this    day of    2014. 

 
 

 
       CITY COMMISSION 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 
 
S E A L 
             
ATTEST:      ED WOLF, MAYOR  
Cassandra Lippincott, City Clerk 
 
First Reading:    
 
Second Reading:    
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
      
Ashley Hunt, City Attorney 

4.a. 
Page 32 of 32



CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

SUBJECT: Autozone 6341 Small Scale Comp. Plan Amendment, CP 1404-01 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 

 
Approval of Ordinance O2014-36. 

 
  Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: 8/11/14 First Reading 

8/25/14 Adoption 
  Regular Meeting  Special Meeting  
  

 
  

CONTRACT:  N/A Vendor/Entity:   
 Effective Date: _____________ Termination Date:   
 Managing Division / Dept:   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT:  
 

 Annual 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 
 

 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT:  
 N/A  

 

 
 

HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 
  
Staff seeks approval for a Small Scale Future Land Use Map Amendment to the adopted 
Comprehensive Plan.  On August 5, 2014, the case was heard before the Planning and Zoning 
Board/Special Magistrate acting as the Local Planning Agency in which the Special Magistrate 
recommended approval of Ordinance O2014-36.  Staff also recommends approval of Ordinance 
02014-36 (attached). 
 
The 1.09 +/- acre subject parcel is intended to be utilized as a small retail store.  The amendment 
reassigns the property from County “Commercial” to City “Commercial.”  Subject to approval of this 
small-scale land use change approval, the applicant has submitted a rezoning application for 
consideration. 
 
Staff believes a Future Land Use Map designation of “Commercial” is appropriate based on the 
intended use of the property and should be approved for the following reasons: 

 Justification of the proposed amendment has been adequately presented; 
 The proposed amendment is consistent with the goals, objectives, and policies of the 

comprehensive plan;  
 The subject amendment does not meet the criteria of urban sprawl or exemplify an energy 

inefficient land use pattern; 
 The proposed amendment will not have an adverse effect on environmentally sensitive 

systems; 
 The proposed amendment will not adversely affect transportation, potable water, sewer, 

schools, or other public facilities without providing remedies to correct the system or facility. 
 
 

4.b. 
Page 1 of 9



 
 
 
The atta
existing a
 

Melanie 
Developm
 
 

ached maps 
and propose

D. Peavy 
ment Service

illustrate th
ed Future La

es Director 

he subject p
and Use Map

 

parcel’s rela
p designation

ation to the 
ns within the

Autozone 634

surroundin
e vicinity. 

Page
41 SSCPA CP 1

Executive Su

g area as w

e 2 of 2 
407-01 

ummary 

well as the 

4.b. 
Page 2 of 9



City of Wildwood, Florida 
Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate 

as Local Planning Agency 

The case below was heard on Thursday, August 5th, 2014, by the Special Magistrate. 
The applicant seeks a small scale comprehensive plan amendment from County 
Commercial to City Commercial on 1.09 +/- acres. The site is generally located on the 
south side of County Road 466 and west of the CSX right-of-way. 

Case: CP 1407-01 

Parcel: D17=034 

Owner: Sumter County I Autozone Stores, Inc. 

Applicant: Autozone Stores, Inc. 

Under subsection 1.7(C) of the Land Development Regulations (LDRs), the Planning 
and Zoning Board/Special Magistrate as Local Planning Agency has a duty to make a 
recommendation to the City Commission on all proposed comprehensive plan 
amendments in accordance with the procedure outlined in subsection 1.14(B)(2) and 
the criteria for the approval of comprehensive plan amendments as defined in 
subsection 1.7(D) of the LDRs. 

Based upon the testimony and information presented, the Special Magistrate 
recommends approval of the small scale land use map amendment and favorable 
recommendation of Ordinance 02014-36 to the City Commission. 

Dated: August ~014 

~ 
Special Magistrate City of Wildwood 

4.b. 
Page 3 of 9



N
 U

S
 3

01

C-466 E

CR 106

C
R

 1
0

8

C
R

 1
0

7

N
E

 42
nd

 B
LV

D

N
 U

S
 3

01

C-466 E

WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

JULY 2014 LOCATION MAP

D17=034
AUTOZONECity of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 90 180

Feet

I:
\T

e
rr

i\G
IS

\M
a

p
s\

L
o

ca
tio

n
\L

o
ca

tio
n

 -
 A

u
to

zo
n

e
.m

xd
 -

 7
/8

/2
0

1
4

 3
:3

0
:3

9
 P

M
 -

 t
o

n
e

a
l

Legend

D17=034

City of Wildwood

4.b. 
Page 4 of 9



N
 U

S
 3

01

CR 106

C-466 E

C
R

 1
0

8

C
R

 1
0

7

N
E

 42
nd

 B
LV

D

N
 U

S
 3

01

N
 U

S
 3

01

C-466 E

WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

JULY 2014 EXISTING LAND USE

D17=034
AUTOZONECity of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 80 160

Feet

I:\
Te

rri
\G

IS
\M

ap
s\

Ex
ist

in
g 

& 
Pr

op
os

ed
 F

LU
\E

xi
st

in
g 

FL
U 

- A
ut

oz
on

e.
m

xd
 - 

7/
9/

20
14

 3
:1

3:
24

 P
M

 - 
to

ne
al COM

COMREC

COM

4.b. 
Page 5 of 9



Ordinance No. O2014-36 
D17=034 Small Scale Comprehensive Plan Amendment (Autozone Stores) 

1 of 2

ORDINANCE NO. O2014-36 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD FLORIDA; 
PROPOSING A SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
AMENDMENT TO THE ADOPTED LOCAL 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE COMMUNITY PLANNING 
ACT OF 2011, AS AMENDED; PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 WHEREAS, the City of Wildwood, Florida, is proposing to amend the local 
Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Map of said City, to include a land use 
amendment described as follows, to-wit: 

Parcel D17=034 
Sumter County / Autozone Stores, Inc. 

1.09 acres +/- 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 

A PORTION OF LANDS DESCRIBED IN O.R. BOOK 229, PAGE 08, OF THE PUBLIC 
RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  

COMMENCE AT THE INTERSECTION OF THE CENTERLINE OF S,R, 466, (THE NORTH 
LINE OF THE SW 1/4 OF THE NW 1/4 OF SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, RANGE 23 
EAST) WITH THE CENTERLINE OF SEABOARD COAST LINE RAILROAD COMPANY'S 
MAIN LINE, BALDWIN-WILDWOOD TRACK; THENCE RUN N 89°49'50" W. ALONG THE 
ABOVE SAID CENTERLINE OF S.R. 466, A DISTANCE OF 51.17 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING; 1) THENCE CONTINUE N.89°49'50"W., ALONG SAID CENTERLINE A 
DISTANCE OF 199.58 FEET; 2) THENCE RUN S.12°07'27 E., A DISTANCE OF 273.64 FEET 
TO THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF MAIN STREET; 3) THENCE RUN S. 89°43'26" E., 
ALONG THE NORTH RIGHT-OFWAY LINE OF MAIN STREET A DISTANCE OF 199.66 FEET 
TO THE WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SEABOARD COAST LINE RAILROAD 
COMPANY'S MAINLINE BALDWIN-WILDWOOD TRACK, SAID POINT ON THE WESTERLY 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, BEING 50.0 FEET FROM AND AT RIGHT ANGLES TO THE 
CENTERLINE OF EXISTING RAIL; 4)THENCE RUN N.12"07'27" W. ALONG THE WESTERLY 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 274.02 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  

CONTAINING 1.09 ACRES MORE OR LESS.           

This property is to be reclassified from Sumter County comprehensive plan 
designation “Commercial” to City comprehensive plan designation “Commercial.” 

4.b. 
Page 6 of 9



Ordinance No. O2014-36 
D17=034 Small Scale Comprehensive Plan Amendment (Autozone Stores) 

2 of 2

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED, by the City 
Commission of Wildwood, Florida, as follows: 

SECTION 1. The adopted local Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Map 
for the City of Wildwood, Florida, are hereby amended to include the above-referenced 
property and proposed land use amendment as indicated above. The amendment to the 
Future Land Use Map of the local comprehensive plan is attached hereto as “Exhibit A” 
and incorporated herein by reference.  

SECTION 2. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, be, and 
the same are hereby repealed.

SECTION 3. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held 
to be invalid or unconstitutional by a Court or competent jurisdiction, then said holding 
shall in no way effect the validity of the remaining portions of said Ordinance.
   

SECTION 4. This Ordinance shall take effect upon its final reading by the City 
Commission of the City of Wildwood. 

DONE AND ORDAINED this    day of    , 2014, by 
the City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 

        CITY COMMISSION 
        CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

S E A L  

Ed Wolf, Mayor 

ATTEST:  ____________ ____   
       Cassandra Lippincott, City Clerk   

First Reading:      

Second Reading:      

Approved as to form: 

Ashley Hunt, City Attorney 

4.b. 
Page 7 of 9



Ordinance O2014-36 

“Exhibit A” 

D17=034 (Sumter County / Autozone Stores) 

Proposed Future Land Use Map Designation 

4.b. 
Page 8 of 9



N
 U

S
 3

01

CR 106

C-466 E

C
R

 1
0

8

C
R

 1
0

7

N
E

 42
nd

 B
LV

D

N
 U

S
 3

01

N
 U

S
 3

01

C-466 E

WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

JULY 2014 PROPOSED LAND USE

D17=034
AUTOZONECity of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 80 160

Feet

I:\
Te

rri
\G

IS
\M

ap
s\

Ex
ist

in
g 

& 
Pr

op
os

ed
 F

LU
\P

ro
po

se
d 

FL
U 

- A
ut

oz
on

e.
m

xd
 - 

7/
9/

20
14

 3
:1

2:
37

 P
M

 - 
to

ne
al

COM

COMREC

COM

4.b. 
Page 9 of 9



SUBJEC
 
 
REQUES
 
 

 
 

CONTRA
 
 
 
 
BUDGET
 

 Annua
 Capita
 N/A 

 

 
 

HISTORY
  
Staff see
City of W
 
The 1.09
CSX rig
amendm
zoning o
proposed
 
Staff rec
which es
 
Case RZ
August 5
of the rez
 

Melanie 
Developm
 

CITY

CT: Au

STED ACTIO

 W

 
 
 

ACT:  
Effe
Man

T IMPACT: 

al 
al 

Y/FACTS/IS

eks approval
Wildwood “C-

9 +/- acre su
ht-of-way.  
ent to chan

of “C-3: Gen
d Future Lan

commends 
stablishes a

Z 1407-01 w
5, 2014.  The
zoning to the

D. Peavy 
ment Service

Y COMMIS

tozone 634

ON: 

Work Sessio

Regular Mee

N/A 
ective Date: 
naging Divis

 
 
FUNDING S
EXPENDITU
 

SSUES: 

l from the C
-3: General C

ubject prope
The prope

nge the Futu
neral Comm
nd Use Map 

approval of
a future lan

was consider
e Planning &
e City Comm

 

es Director 

SSION OF

EXECUT

41 Rezonin
 
Approval o

on (Report O

eting 

__________
sion / Dept: 

SOURCE: 
URE ACCO

ity Commiss
Commercial 

erty is locate
erty is subje
ure Land Us
ercial - High
designation

f Ordinance
d use appro

red by the P
& Zoning Bo

mission. 

F THE CI
 

TIVE SUMM
 

ng – RZ 14

of Ordinanc

Only) DAT

 S
 

Vend
____ Term

 

UNT: 

sion for a re
- Highway.”

ed on the so
ect to a co
se Map des
hway” would
.  

e O2014-37 
opriate to th

Planning & Z
oard/Special

ITY OF W

MARY 

407-01 

ce O2014-3

TE OF MEET

Special Meet

dor/Entity:  
mination Date

 
 
 

ezoning from
”   

outh side of 
oncurrent S
ignation to 
d bring the 

subject to a
he propose

Zoning Boa
 Magistrate 

WILDWOO

7. 

TING: 8
8

ting  
 

 
e:   

m County “CL

County Roa
Small Scale
City “Comm
property int

approval of
d zoning. 

rd/Special M
gave a favo

OD 

8/11/14 First
8/25/14 Ado

L: Light Com

ad 466 and 
 Comprehe

mercial”. The
to complian

f Ordinance

Magistrate o
orable recom

t Reading 
ption 

mmercial” to 

west of the 
ensive Plan 
e requested 
ce with the 

e O2014-36, 

on Tuesday, 
mmendation 

4.c. 
Page 1 of 8



City of Wildwood 
Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate 

The case below was heard on Thursday, August 51
h, 2014 by the Special Magistrate. 

The applicant seeks approval and favorable recommendation from the City of Wildwood 
Planning and Zoning Board/Special Magistrate for a Zoning Map Amendment from 
County "CL: Light Commercial" to City "C-3: General Commercial : Highway." The 
property is generally located on the south side of County Road 466 and west of the CSX 
right-of-way. 

Case: RZ 1407-01 

Parcel: D17=034 

Owner: Sumter County I Autozone Stores, Inc. 

Applicant: Autozone Stores, Inc. 

Under subsections 1.7(B)(2) and 3.3(B)(3) of the Land Development Regulations 
(LDRs), the Planning and Zoning Board/Special Magistrate has a duty to make a 
recommendation to the City Commission on all proposed zoning amendments in 
accordance with the procedure outlined in subsection 1.14 (B)(3) and the criteria for the 
approval of zoning amendments as defined in subsection 3.3(B)(4) of the LDRs. 

Based upon the testimony and information presented, the Special Magistrate 
recommends approval of the Zoning Map Amendment and favorable recommendation 
of Ordinance 02014-37 to the City Commission. 

Dated: August S , 2014 

~~ 
Special Magistrate City of Wildwood 

4.c. 
Page 2 of 8



N
 U

S
 3

01

C-466 E

CR 106

C
R

 1
0

8

C
R

 1
0

7

N
E

 42
nd

 B
LV

D

N
 U

S
 3

01

C-466 E

WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

JULY 2014 LOCATION MAP

D17=034
AUTOZONECity of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 90 180

Feet

I:
\T

e
rr

i\G
IS

\M
a

p
s\

L
o

ca
tio

n
\L

o
ca

tio
n

 -
 A

u
to

zo
n

e
.m

xd
 -

 7
/8

/2
0

1
4

 3
:3

0
:3

9
 P

M
 -

 t
o

n
e

a
l

Legend

D17=034

City of Wildwood

4.c. 
Page 3 of 8



CR 106

C-466 E

C
R

 1
0

8

C
R

 1
0

7

N
E

 42
nd

 B
LV

D

C-466 E

WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

JULY 2014 EXISTING ZONING

D17=034
AUTOZONECity of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 60 120

Feet

I:\
Te

rr
i\G

IS
\M

a
p

s\
E

xi
st

in
g 

&
 P

ro
p

o
se

d
 Z

o
n

in
g

\E
xi

st
in

g
 Z

o
n

in
g

 -
 A

u
to

zo
n

e
.m

xd
 -

 7
/9

/2
0

14
 1

:3
5

:3
2

 P
M

 -
 to

n
e

a
l

C3

CL

C2

RR

CH

CH

CL

C2

C2

RR

C2 A5
RR1C-3

CH

C2

CH

C-3

4.c. 
Page 4 of 8



Ordinance No. O2014-37 
D17=034 Rezoning (Sumter County / Autozone Stores) 

1 of 2

ORDINANCE NO. O2014-37 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD FLORIDA; 
PROPOSING A ZONING MAP AMENDMENT TO THE 
OFFICIAL ZONING MAP IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
SECTIONS 3.2 AND 3.3 OF THE LAND DEVELOPMENT 
REGULATIONS; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

 WHEREAS, the City of Wildwood, Florida, is proposing to amend the Official 
Zoning Map of said City, to include a rezoning of real property described as follows, to-
wit:

Parcel D17=034 
Sumter County / Autozone Stores, Inc. 

1.09 acres +/- 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 

A PORTION OF LANDS DESCRIBED IN O.R. BOOK 229, PAGE 08, OF THE PUBLIC 
RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  

COMMENCE AT THE INTERSECTION OF THE CENTERLINE OF S,R, 466, (THE NORTH 
LINE OF THE SW 1/4 OF THE NW 1/4 OF SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, RANGE 23 
EAST) WITH THE CENTERLINE OF SEABOARD COAST LINE RAILROAD COMPANY'S 
MAIN LINE, BALDWIN-WILDWOOD TRACK; THENCE RUN N 89°49'50" W. ALONG THE 
ABOVE SAID CENTERLINE OF S.R. 466, A DISTANCE OF 51.17 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING; 1) THENCE CONTINUE N.89°49'50"W., ALONG SAID CENTERLINE A 
DISTANCE OF 199.58 FEET; 2) THENCE RUN S.12°07'27 E., A DISTANCE OF 273.64 FEET 
TO THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF MAIN STREET; 3) THENCE RUN S. 89°43'26" E., 
ALONG THE NORTH RIGHT-OFWAY LINE OF MAIN STREET A DISTANCE OF 199.66 FEET 
TO THE WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SEABOARD COAST LINE RAILROAD 
COMPANY'S MAINLINE BALDWIN-WILDWOOD TRACK, SAID POINT ON THE WESTERLY 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, BEING 50.0 FEET FROM AND AT RIGHT ANGLES TO THE 
CENTERLINE OF EXISTING RAIL; 4)THENCE RUN N.12"07'27" W. ALONG THE WESTERLY 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 274.02 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  

CONTAINING 1.09 ACRES MORE OR LESS.           

This property is to be reclassified from Sumter County “CL: Light Commercial” to 
City of Wildwood “C-3 General Commercial: Highway.” 

 AND WHEREAS, the rezoning is consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan 
and Land Development Regulations. 

4.c. 
Page 5 of 8



Ordinance No. O2014-37 
D17=034 Rezoning (Sumter County / Autozone Stores) 

2 of 2

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED, by the City 
Commission of Wildwood, Florida, as follows: 

SECTION 1. The Official Zoning Map of the City of Wildwood, Florida is hereby 
amended to include the above-referenced property as indicated above. The amendment 
to the Official Zoning Map is attached hereto as “Exhibit A” and incorporated herein by 
reference.

SECTION 2. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, be, and 
the same are hereby repealed.

SECTION 3. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held 
to be invalid or unconstitutional by a Court or competent jurisdiction, then said holding 
shall in no way effect the validity of the remaining portions of said Ordinance.

SECTION 4. This Ordinance shall take effect upon its final reading by the City 
Commission of the City of Wildwood. 

DONE AND ORDAINED this    day of    , 2014, by 
the City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 

        CITY COMMISSION 
        CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

S E A L  

Ed Wolf, Mayor 

ATTEST:  _____  ___________   
       Cassandra Lippincott, City Clerk   

First Reading:      

Second Reading:      

Approved as to form: 

Ashley Hunt, City Attorney 

4.c. 
Page 6 of 8



Ordinance O2014-37 

“Exhibit A” 

D17=034 (Sumter County / Autozone Stores) 

Proposed Zoning Map Designation 

4.c. 
Page 7 of 8



CR 106

C-466 E

C
R

 1
0

8

C
R

 1
0

7

N
E

 42
nd

 B
LV

D

C-466 E

WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

JULY 2014 PROPOSED ZONING

D17=034
AUTOZONECity of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 60 120

Feet

I:\
Te

rr
i\G

IS
\M

a
p

s\
E

xi
st

in
g 

&
 P

ro
p

o
se

d
 Z

o
n

in
g

\P
ro

p
os

e
d

 Z
on

in
g 

- 
A

ut
o

zo
ne

.m
xd

 -
 7

/9
/2

0
1

4
 1

:4
1

:0
2 

P
M

 -
 t

o
ne

a
l

C3

C-3

C2

RR

CH

CH

CL

C2

C2

RR

C2 A5
RR1C-3

CH

C2

CH

C-3

4.c. 
Page 8 of 8



SUBJEC

 
 
REQUES
 
 
 
 

CONTRA
 
 
 
BUDGET
 

 Annua
 Capita
 N/A 

                    
 

 
HISTORY
 
The City
Millenniu
develope
the propo
 
Attached
was offe
the purch
soccer fie
 
Should t
pass a re
in the eve
 
Please n
improvem
 
 
Board O
 

 
Jason F. 
Assistant
 

CITY

CT: R

STED ACTIO

 W
 

 
 

ACT:  
Effe
Man

T IMPACT: 

al 
al 

                         

Y/FACTS/IS

y has receiv
um Park pro
er needs to a
osed project

d are maps o
red $5/squa
hase price w
elds.  

he City Com
esolution dec
ent the Com

note any pro
ments to the

Option. 

 

McHugh, A
t City Manag

Y COMMIS

Resolution

ON: 

Work Sessio
Regular Mee

N/A 
ective Date: 
naging Divis

 
 
FUNDING S
EXPENDITU
 
                          

SSUES: 

ved an offe
operty that a
acquire addi
t. 

of the prope
are foot for t
would be $23

mmission op
claring the p

mmission cho

ceeds from 
 park. The C

ICP 
ger/Director 

SSION OF

EXECUT

n R2014-24

 
Considerat

on (Report O
eting 

__________
sion / Dept: 

SOURCE: 
URE ACCO

                      

r from Brigh
abuts the pr
tional prope

erty in quest
the property
39,580. Sale

pt to pursue
property as s
ooses to mov

the sale of 
City could no

of Strategic 

F THE CI
 

TIVE SUMM
 

: Declaring

tion of R20

Only) DAT
 S

 

Vend
____ Term

 

UNT: 

ht Oaks Gr
roposed Bri

erty from the

ion and the 
y. Based on 
e of the prop

e the sale of
surplus prop
ve forward w

the Millenniu
ot use the fun

Planning 

ITY OF W

MARY 

g Surplus 
Park  

14-24 (Boa

TE OF MEET
Special Meet

dor/Entity:  
mination Date

 
 
 

roup to purc
ght Oaks d
 City to acco

initial offer 
the square 

perty would i

f the Millenn
perty.  Resol
with the nego

um Park pro
nds for any o

WILDWOO

Real Prope

ard Option) 

TING: 8
ting  

 

 
e:   

chase appro
evelopment
ommodate s

from Bright 
footage of 

mpact the e

nium Park p
ution R2014
otiation of sa

operty would
other purpos

OD 

erty at Mill

8/25/14 

oximately 1
t on Powell 
stormwater r

Oaks in wh
the propose
xisting walk

property, the
4-24 has bee
ale of the pro

d have to be
se.  

lennium 

.1 acres of 
Road. The 

retention for 

ich the City 
ed property, 
ing trail and 

e City must
en prepared 
operty. 

e utilized for 

7.a. 
Page 1 of 6



P
O

W
E

LL
 R

D

HUEY ST CR 144

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, i-cubed, Earthstar
Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AEX,
Getmapping, Aerogrid, IGN, IGP, swisstopo, and the GIS
User Community

WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

AUGUST 2014 RETENTION AREA

BRIGHT OAKS RETENTION
Potential Property PurchaseCity of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 100 200

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS\

Ma
ps

\M
isc

ell
an

eo
us

\M
ille

niu
m 

Pa
rk 

Br
iig

ht 
Oa

ks
 R

en
ten

tio
n.m

xd
 - 8

/19
/20

14
 8:

39
:35

 AM
 - t

on
ea

l

Legend
City Roads

Millennium Park

Bright Oaks Retention

Bright Oaks

City of Wildwood

450.46 ft

10
6

.6
2

 f
t

1.10 Acres

7.a. 
Page 2 of 6



	
	
	
	

	 	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	 	 C
	 	 C
	 	 1
	 	 W
	
	 	
	 	 D
	

B
p
t
$
w
s
k

	
	 	 B
	

	
	 	 M
	 	 V

City	Commis
City	of	Wildw
100	North	M
Wildwood,	F

Dear	City	Co

Bright	Oaks	
purchase	ap
the	attached
$7	for	land,	
we	have	rec
support	a	$7
know	at	you

Best	regards

Michael	Sed
Vice	Preside

ssioners		
wood	Florid
Main	Street	
Florida	347

ommissione

Group	and	
pproximatel
d	exhibit	wh
but	I	believ
commended
7‐$10	PSF	th
ur	convenien

s,	

	

dley		
ent	Develop

da	

85	

ers,	

First	Ameri
ly	.8	acres	at
hich	is	adjac
ve	that	land	
d	does	not	h
he	value	of	t
nce.		

pment	

	

ican	Assiste
t	a	price	of	$
cent	to	ours
price	would
ave	any	acc
the	City’s	pa

ed	Living	(ou
$5	per	squa
.	I	understa
d	include	ac
cess.		Theref
arcel	on	Hu

ur	land	hold
are	foot	for	t
nd	that	we	
ccess	to	the	
fore,	a	sale	a
ey	and	Pow

ding	entity)
the	parcel	id
discussed	th
roadway.		T
at	$5	per	foo
well	Roads.		P

)	offers	to	
dentified	on
he	value	of	
This	parcel	
ot	should	
Please	let	u

n	

s	

7.a. 
Page 3 of 6



RESOLUTION NO. R2014-24 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 
CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA DETERMINING THAT 
CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY IS SURPLUS; DETERMINING 
THAT SAID REAL PROPERTY SHOULD BE USED IN A 
MANNER TO FURTHER THE PUBLIC INTEREST; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
    
 WHEREAS, the City of Wildwood is the owner of 1.10 acres more or less of 
certain real property currently identified by the Sumter County Property Appraiser as a 
portion of parcel G08=004 and as shown on the attached “Exhibit A”; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Wildwood has determined that the 
property as shown in the attached “Exhibit A” is classified as surplus.  
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 
CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA, THAT: 
 
 1. The property shown on “Exhibit A” is hereby declared surplus property.   
 
 2. The property identified in “Exhibit A” may be sold in a manner determined 
appropriate by the City Commission. 
  
 3.    This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption by the City 
Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 
 
 DONE AND RESOLVED, this    day of     , 2014, 
in regular session, by the City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 
 
       CITY COMMISSION 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 
 
SEAL 
             
ATTEST:                   Ed Wolf, Mayor 
     Cassandra Lippincott, City Clerk 
 
 

7.a. 
Page 4 of 6



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

R2014-24 

“Exhibit A” 

Declaring Surplus Property 

Sketch of Description 

 

7.a. 
Page 5 of 6



7.a. 
Page 6 of 6



 
 
CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 
CITY COMMISSION REPORT Commission Meeting Date:  Aug 25, 2014 

 
Subject: Lift Station #3 RTU Radio Unit 
 
Submitted By:  Mark Odell, Interim Utility Director 
 
Department:  Utility Department 
 
 
Staff Recommendation (Motion Ready):  Staff recommends approval to purchase a new 
RTU control unit for Lift Station #3 (The Commons) from Data-Flow Systems at a cost 
of $5,047.90.  
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On August 13, 2012 City Commission approved an agreement to upgrade existing 
communication radios to meet the new Federal Communications Commission (FCC) 
narrow banding regulations for all of the City’s wastewater pump station SCADA 
systems. At that time it was anticipated that 20 to 25% failure of existing radios due to 
the age would need to be replaced at some point in the future.       

 
FINDING, CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 FINDINGS:  
 The existing RTU for The Commons lift station has failed and was sent to Data-

Flow systems for repairs. Due to the age a radio replacement is not feasible with 
the out dated technology of the existing unit.   

 
 CONCLUSIONS:  
 A replacement RTU with upgraded technology complete with narrow banded 

radio system will be necessary to maintain communications with the lift station. 
Due to the fact our existing unit can’t be repaired, quotation # 39166-RA from 
Data-Flow System is to replace the existing unit for the amount of $5,047.90. 

   
  

LEGAL REVIEW: N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 Staff recommends approval to purchase the new RTU to maintain 

communications with the lift station from Data-Flow System in the amount of 
$5,047.90. 

8.a. 
Page 1 of 3



 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 Funding source is Water-Sewer Repair & Maintenance Account No. 401-0035-

536.0460, with an unencumbered balance as of July, 2014 of: $223,038.88  
 
ALTERNATIVES: none 
 
SUPPORT MATERIAL: 
 Quotation # 39166-RA from Data-Flow Systems dated 07/09/2014 
 

 
 
 
 

8.a. 
Page 2 of 3



8.a. 
Page 3 of 3



 
 
CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 
CITY COMMISSION REPORT Commission Meeting Date:  Aug 25, 2014 

 
Subject: Wastewater Internal Re-Use High Service Pump 
 
Submitted By:  Mark Odell, Interim Utility Director 
 
Department:  Utility Department 
 
 
Staff Recommendation (Motion Ready):  Staff recommends approval to replace an 
existing internal re-use pump at the Wastewater Treatment Plant as per quotation # 
664857 from USA BLUEBOOK for the amount of $2,977.90  
 
 
BACKGROUND:   
 The existing internal re-use pump supplies re-use water for all of the onsite 

processes equipment, belt press and chlorine solution lines.  
 

FINDING, CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 FINDINGS:  
 The existing pump has been in service since 1990 and runs an average of 10 hours 

a day 4 days a week. 
 Due to the age of the pump (24 years) parts are no longer available and the pump 

is obsolete. 
 The bearings and pump impeller are going out in the pump and needs to be 

replaced. 
 

 CONCLUSIONS:  
 Two quotes have been obtained for the replacement pump. 
 USA Bluebook quote,  pump price of $2662.20 plus $315.70 for shipping for a 

total of $2977.90 
 Locke Well & Pump quote, pump price of $2,825.00 plus no shipping cost 

provided    
  

LEGAL REVIEW: NONE 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Staff recommends to purchase the replacement pump from USA Bluebook for the amount 
of $2,977.90. 
 

8.b. 
Page 1 of 4



FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding source is Water-Sewer Repair & Replacement account no. 401-0035-536.0460, 
with an unencumbered balance as of July, 2014 of: $223,038.88. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: none 
 
 
SUPPORT MATERIAL: 
Quotes from USA Bluebook and Locke Well & Pump Co. 

 
 
 
 
 

8.b. 
Page 2 of 4



8.b. 
Page 3 of 4



8.b. 
Page 4 of 4



 
 
CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 
CITY COMMISSION REPORT Commission Meeting Date:  Aug 25, 2014 

 
Subject: CR 468 Utility Relocations Contract Award 
 
Submitted By:  Mark Odell, Interim Utility Director 
 
Department:  Utility Department 
 
 
Staff Recommendation (Motion Ready):  Recommend the award of the CR-468 Utility 
relocation project to Hamlet Underground in the amount of $489,865.50.  
 
 
BACKGROUND:   
 The State of Florida Turnpike Enterprise has contract plans to build the State 

Road No. 91 and County Road 468 Interchange.  
 As part of this project Sumter County is making improvements to County Road 

468/Turnpike overpass.  
 

FINDING, CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 FINDINGS:  
 The City of Wildwood Utility Department has water & wastewater infrastructure 

in the County’s Right of Way (R-O-W) on CR 468. 
 City utilities are located within the County’s road improvement plan and will need 

to be relocated. 
 KH&A has designed the plans for the City’s utility relocations, with staff 

approval, solicited from the City’s “Minor Utility Services” contractors, a bid for 
the relocation of the utilities.  

 Staff and KH&A have obtained the permits necessary for the construction of the 
utility lines from FDOT, FDEP and Sumter County.  

 
 CONCLUSIONS:  
 Bids were received from: Rainey Construction - $500,152.70 

         Hamlet Underground - $489,865.50 
  

LEGAL REVIEW: NONE 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 Staff and Kimley-Horn & Associates recommend award of the utility relocation 

project to Hamlet Underground in the amount of $489,856.50 

8.c. 
Page 1 of 14



 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 The Utility Department budget, FY 13/14 Capital Projects line item no. 39 

allocated $150,000.00 for the Turnpike Interchange Utility Relocates. 
 Since the project will most likely start in the FY 13/14 approved budget and 

continue into the proposed FY 14/15 budget, a Capital Project of $500,000.00 to 
complete the work is included into FY 14/15.    

 
ALTERNATIVES:  
 
SUPPORT MATERIAL: 
 FDEP General Use Permit for Water Main Extensions 
 FDEP General Use Permit for Domestic Wastewater Collection/Transmission 
 FDOT Utility Permit  
 Rainey Construction/Hamlet Underground Bid Tabulation  
 Bid Form Award for Hamlet Underground  
 

 
 
 
 

8.c. 
Page 2 of 14



8.c. 
Page 3 of 14



8.c. 
Page 4 of 14



8.c. 
Page 5 of 14



8.c. 
Page 6 of 14



8.c. 
Page 7 of 14



8.c. 
Page 8 of 14



8.c. 
Page 9 of 14



8.c. 
Page 10 of 14



8.c. 
Page 11 of 14



8.c. 
Page 12 of 14



8.c. 
Page 13 of 14



8.c. 
Page 14 of 14


	2014.08.25 Agenda
	2.a. Minutes for Approval
	2.b. Bills for Approval
	4.a. O2014-33 FINAL ITEM REVISED with Redline Grand Oaks Manor
	4.b. O2014-36 Autozone SSCPA
	4.c. O2014-37 Autozone Rezoning
	7.a. Resolution for Approval_Bright Oaks Surplus Property
	8.a. Lift Station #3 RTU Radio Unit
	Lift Station #3 RTU Radio Unit
	Data-Flow System Quotation # 39166-RA

	8.b. Wastewater Internal Re-Use High Service Pump
	Internal reuse hsp
	Quotes for pump replacement

	8.c. CR 468 Utility Relocations Contract Award
	CR 468 Utility Relocations
	bid form award
	bid tabulation
	fdep forcemain permit
	fdep water permit
	fdot utility permit




